
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 22 SEPTEMBER 2016 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Alderman Alison Gowman (Chairman) 

Ian Seaton (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Billy Dove 
Karina Dostalova 
Simon Duckworth 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
Deputy Stanley Ginsburg 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Alderman Vincent Keaveny 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
The Rt Hon the Lord Mayor, The Lord Mountevans (Ex-Officio Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Philippa Sewell  

tel. no.: 020 7332 1426 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording  
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 14 July 2016. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 8) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 9 - 10) 

 
5. PROGRESS REPORT 
 To receive a progress report of the Chief Grants Officer. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 11 - 24) 

 
6. RISK REGISTER FOR BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES 
 Report of the Chamberlain. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 25 - 32) 

 
7. GRANTS AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 

ASSESSMENTS 
 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s reports on grant recommendations as follows:- 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 33 - 34) 

 
 a) Afghan Association Paiwand  (Pages 35 - 36) 

 

 b) Baytree Centre  (Pages 37 - 38) 
 

 c) School Food Matters  (Pages 39 - 40) 
 

 d) Church of England's Children's Society  (Pages 41 - 42) 
 

 e) East London Out Project  (Pages 43 - 44) 
 

 f) Groundswell Network Support UK  (Pages 45 - 46) 
 



3 
 

 g) Highbury Roundhouse Youth and Community Centre  (Pages 47 - 48) 
 

 h) Kith & Kids  (Pages 49 - 50) 
 

 i) Noah's Ark Children's Hospice  (Pages 51 - 52) 
 

 j) Play, Adventure and Community Enrichment (PACE)  (Pages 53 - 54) 
 

 k) South London Fine Art Gallery and Library  (Pages 55 - 58) 
 

 l) St Peter's Bethnal Green  (Pages 59 - 60) 
 

 m) Age UK Richmond Upon Thames  (Pages 61 - 62) 
 

 n) Chinese National Healthy Living Centre  (Pages 63 - 64) 
 

 o) Cardinal Hume Centre  (Pages 65 - 66) 
 

 p) Crosslight Advice  (Pages 67 - 68) 
 

 q) Haringey Migrant Support Centre  (Pages 69 - 70) 
 

 r) Chaos Theory  (Pages 71 - 72) 
 

 s) St Giles Trust  (Pages 73 - 74) 
 

 t) Community Links Bromley  (Pages 75 - 78) 
 
 

8. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS FOLLOWS:- 
 

 a) Applications recommended for rejection  (Pages 79 - 92) 
 

 b) Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated Authority  (Pages 93 - 96) 
 

 c) Unsuccessful Stepping Stones applications  (Pages 97 - 110) 
 

 d) Withdrawn & Lapsed applications  (Pages 111 - 112) 
 

 e) Variations to grants awarded  (Pages 113 - 114) 
 

 f) Report on monitoring visits  (Pages 115 - 124) 
 

 g) Events attended  (Pages 125 - 132) 
 
 

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 
 
11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
 
 



 

 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2016. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 133 - 134) 

 
13. PIPELINE OF PRO-ACTIVE STRATEGIC GRANTS 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 135 - 138) 

 
14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 14 July 2016  
 

Minutes of the meeting of The City Bridge Trust Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on 
Thursday, 14 July 2016 at 1.45 pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Alderman Alison Gowman (Chairman) 
Ian Seaton (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Billy Dove 
Karina Dostalova 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
Deputy Stanley Ginsburg 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Alderman Vincent Keaveny 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
 
Officers: 
Philippa Sewell - Town Clerk's Department 

Steven Reynolds - Chamberlain's Department 

Anne Pietsch - Comptroller and City Solicitor's Department 

David Farnsworth - Chief Grants Officer 

Jenny Field - The City Bridge Trust 

Ciaran Rafferty - The City Bridge Trust 

Neha Chandgothia 
Sandra Davidson 

- The City Bridge Trust 
- The City Bridge Trust 

Jemma Grieve Combes - The City Bridge Trust 

Martin Hall - The City Bridge Trust 

Sandra Jones - The City Bridge Trust 

Jack Joslin - The City Bridge Trust 

Joan Millbank - The City Bridge Trust 

Shegufta Rahman - The City Bridge Trust 

Tim Wilson - The City Bridge Trust 

Stephanie Basten - Communications Office 

 
In Attendance: 

 Luljeta Nuzi, Shpresa 

 School Food Matters 

 South London Botanical Institute 

 Tender Education and Arts 

 Stratford Circus Arts Centre 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from the Right Hon. the Lord Mayor. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
Alderman Alison Gowman, Vivienne Littlechild and Wendy Mead declared 
personal interests in Spark Inside, by virtue of being acquainted with one of the 
Directors through their Livery Company.  
 
Edward Lord declared a non-pecuniary interest in The West India Committee, 
which was on the list of rejected applications, by virtue of receiving hospitality 
from them. 
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting 
held on 24 May 2016 be agreed as an accurate record.  
 

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS  
Members noted that the new website was live and, for the time being, the point 
of contact for any questions was Martin Hall. With regard to visits, officers 
advised dates were being finalised, after which monthly emails would be 
circulated.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Outstanding Actions update be noted. 
 

5. SHPRESA  
The Committee received a presentation from Luljeta Nuzi, Programme Director 
and Founder of Shpresa, after which Members had the opportunity to ask 
questions. 
 
Ms Nuzi began by reading a poem by the Albanian speaking community with 
which Shpresa worked. She thanked the Committee for their current funding, 
and detailed the work Shpresa carried out to bring together and support 
Albanians or Kosovans in the UK and help them integrate and engage with the 
wider community. Ms Nuzi advised that Shpresa acted as a mobilising platform, 
identifying partnership organisations to link together and provide specialist 
programmes and services; e.g. for victims of domestic abuse.  
 
Members noted that the City Bridge Trust grant had allowed Shpresa to offer 
ESOL classes to improve the English speaking skills of 120 vulnerable and 
isolated women (40 per year) and, by doing so, better integrate them into the 
wider community, enable them to access mainstream services, and increase 
their confidence and self-esteem. Members also noted Shpresa ran Albanian 
schools in partnership with mainstream schools in five London boroughs, which 
worked to promote a positive Albanian identity, develop literacy and learning to 
improve the children’s attainment in mainstream schools, and also improve the 
children’s relationship with their own family and community. 
 
The Chairman thanked Ms Nuzi for her presentation. 
 
 

Page 2



6. PROGRESS REPORT  
The Committee received the regular progress report of the Chief Grants Officer 
and discussed the updates provided, including: 
 
Quinquennial Review 

 A Project Manager had been recruited on secondment who was 
anticipated to start soon and be full-time by autumn.  

 
Stepping Stones 

 A more detailed report would be received when more grantees had 
completed the process and more information was available. 

 
Communications 

 The CBT team were linking with other departments, sharing resources 
and ensuring work was not being duplicated.  

 Martin Hall is covering much of the work of the vacant Communications 
Officer role. The JD is being reviewed and the post will then be re-
evaluated. They will be responsible for CBT branding and/or promotion 
from successful grantees.  

 A post is being created within the Media Team with responsibility for 
CBT, Responsible Business and Philanthropy and which will probably be 
co-located within CBT. 

 
Central Grants Programme 

 Resources had been agreed by the Finance Committee via delegated 
authority to ensure the Central Grants programme would go “live” in 
August 2016. 

 The Chief Grants Officer reported that the Policy & Resources 
Committee had been tasked with ensuring the Grants Programme was 
adequately resourced, and assured Members there would be no drain on 
City Bridge Trust resources. 

 
Resources 

 An offer had been made and accepted for a Head of Charity and Social 
Investment Finance, and a September start date was anticipated with 
interim arrangements in place until then. 

 
Statistics 

 Members noted that two applications were still pending from March 2015 
as information was outstanding. These would now be lapsed.  

 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

7. THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN 2016-18  
The Committee received the draft Business Plan for 2016-18. Members noted a 
correction; that there would be one round of Stepping Stones by January 2017 
rather than two, and asked that an organisational chart be circulated showing 
existing and new members of staff linked to the Trust’s work, and an indication 
of from where these were being funded (i.e. whether using Bridge House 
Estates monies).  

Page 3



 
RESOLVED – That the Business Plan for 2016-18 be approved, and an 
organisational chart be circulated.  
 

8. GRANTS AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 
ASSESSMENTS  
 
8a Strategic Initiative: Access and Sustainability Advisory Service  
APPROVED - £311,000 over five years (£61,000; £61,000; £62,000; £63,000; 
£64,000) towards the salary and associated running costs of the Access and 
Sustainability Advisory Service, with the grant subject to external evaluation 
after three years. 
 
8b South London Botanical Institute  
APPROVED - £76,500 over three years (£26,800; £27,700; £22,000) towards 
the salary of a part-time Education and Outreach Coordinator (14 hours per 
week) and part-time Project Manager (7 hours per week) and running costs of 
Botany on the Plate programme. This grant would be contingent on South 
London Botanical Institute providing an outline programme of work for each 
funding year.  
 
8c Sutton Community Farm  
APPROVED - £90,000 over three years (3 x £30,000) towards the salary of 
Head of Production (3 days per week) and a contribution towards the General 
Manager's post (1 day per week) and associated project costs. 
 
8d St Mungo's Broadway  
APPROVED - £135,000 over three years (£45,000; £45,000; £45,000) to fund 
the salary of a full-time equivalent psychotherapist post for the delivery of the 
LifeWorks programme. 
 
8e The Brandon Centre  
APPROVED - £142,500 over three years (£47,000; £47,500; £48,000) towards 
4.5 days per week of the full-time Centre Manager. 
 
8f Action Space London Events  
APPROVED - £118,300 over three years (£40,830; £39,340; £38,130) to 
contribute to the full-time salary of the Co-Director (16 hours per week Year 1; 
10 hours per week Year 2; 8 hours per week Year 3), project set up, sessional 
staff and associated running costs. 
 
8g Stratford Circus Arts Centre  
APPROVED - £93,240 over 3 years (3 x £31,080) towards the salaries of the 
Education Manager (5.25 hours/week) and Project Coordinator (9.75 
hours/week); the sessional costs of the Artistic Director, Assistant Director, and 
Artistic Support Workers; and the running costs of the Blue Sky Actors project. 
 
8h Tender Education and Arts  
APPROVED - £100,560 over three years (£17,880; £40,020; £42,660) to 
support young people in care and care leavers in avoiding or escaping abusive 
relationships as follows:  

Page 4



(a) year 1: a contribution to the programme;  
(b) years 2 and 3: towards 0.7 full-time equivalent salary costs of a Youth 
Engagement Manager, running costs and overheads.  
 
8i Age UK London  
APPROVED - £113,200 over three years (£40,500; £40,500; £32,200) for the 
salary costs of a part-time Programme Officer (21 hours per week) and 
Research and Campaign Officer (7 hours per week), and associated running 
costs. 
 
8j Lewisham Refugee and Migrant Network  
APPROVED - £120,000 over three years (£39,100; £39,900; £41,000) for the 
salary of a fulltime Housing Law Advisor and associated running costs. 
 
8k The Hackney Foodbank  
In response to a Member’s query, officers confirmed they could discuss use of 
alternative places of worship alongside local churches with the applicant 
through the management of the grant.  
 
APPROVED - £114,950 over three years (£37,450; £38,550; £38,950) for a full-
time Project Manager and associated costs. 
 
8l Spark Inside  
APPROVED - £90,000 over three years (£30,000; £30,000, £30,000) to 
contribute towards the Chief Executive's full-time salary, rent and associated 
office costs. 
 
8m Inclusion London  
APPROVED - £114,200 over two years (£56,500; £57,700) for a part-time (21 
hours per week) Business Development Manager and project overheads, with 
the proviso that pro-bono or expenses-only specialist marketing support is 
sought. Funding is conditional upon receipt of a satisfactory final report for the 
previous grant. 
 

9. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS 
FOLLOWS:-  
 
9a Applications recommended for rejection  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer, which 
recommended that twenty three grant applications be rejected for the reasons 
identified in the schedule attached to the report. In response to a Member’s 
query regarding how Mayors and Leaders of London Boroughs were informed 
about the Trust, the Chief Grants Officer confirmed there were 
thematic/geographic leads within the team and undertook to circulate a note 
outlining these. 
   
RESOLVED – That twenty three grant applications detailed in the schedule 
attached to the report be rejected, and a note be circulated outlining the 
geographical and thematic leads. 
 

Page 5



9b Investing in Londoners - monitoring data report - September 2013 
to March 2016  

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which provided an 
analysis of data collected from annual grant monitoring reports received in the 
first two and a half years of the Investing in Londoners grants programme, 
which ran from September 2013 to March 2016. The report set out the range of 
work funded; how well work had progressed against the outcomes agreed at 
application stage; feedback from, and a statistical breakdown of, 
users/beneficiaries; and the relationship with the Trust more broadly, including 
what worked well and what did not. 
 
Officers advised that most monitoring visits were providing good or very good 
reports which suggested that work being delivered was of a good quality and 
the organisations were collecting evidence to show how their work was making 
a difference. 75% said that their City Bridge Trust grant had positively affected 
their fundraising efforts, and 95% of grantees stated that their grant had 
brought additional benefits including the number and reach to different types of 
users/beneficiaries, improved partnership working, and the ability to plan ahead 
more strategically through multi-year funding.   
 
Members noted the number of beneficiaries and their geographical distribution, 
which broadly followed the Government’s 2015 Indices of Multiple Deprivation. 
Members noted the caveat regarding quality of data, and were advised that this 
meant equality data could not be reliably analysed at the moment. Officers 
advised that the Trust would explore alternative methods to collect and analyse 
data, though it was still useful to give an indication of overall trends by borough. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
9c Philanthropy Review  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which set out the 
main findings of the Philanthropy Review commissioned by the Trust in 
September 2015. This looked at the effectiveness of the various strands of 
work supported by the City Bridge Trust, and to make recommendations for the 
Trust’s strategic direction in for the future. The Review included: 

 City Philanthropy – a Wealth of Opportunity, together with Beyond Me, 
the City Funding Network and the Beacon Awards 

 London’s Giving, and the related grants to Islington Giving and East End 
Community Foundation 

 Heart of the City 

 Spice 

 The Lord Mayor’s Appeal Charity and City Giving Day. 
 
Overall, the Review found that the Trust’s support had been largely positive, 
and underlined how each aspect complemented the others. However, it also 
found that more could be done to co-ordinate the five projects better to 
maximise their impact, and highlighted areas of future need regarding 
infrastructure in order to create stronger, more reliant communities. Members 
discussed the report, and requested a report analysing the outcomes of 
strategic initiatives be presented at a future meeting, as well as further 

Page 6



information regarding future funding of Heart of the City and its long-term 
sustainability.  
 
RESOLVED – That: 

a) officers to bring proposed next steps to the September Committee 
Meeting. 

b) officers bring specific proposals for the future funding by the Trust of City 
Philanthropy – a wealth of opportunity, and London’s Giving to the 
September Committee Meeting;  

c) further details regarding future funding of Heart of the City and Spice 
(Time Credits) be brought to a future Committee meeting; 

d) a report analysing the current position and outcomes of the Strategic 
Initiatives funded by the Trust will be presented at the November 
Committee meeting; and 

e) the report be noted. 
 
9d Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated Authority  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which advised 
Members of seven expenditure items, totalling £191,200, which had been 
presented for approval under delegated authority to the Chief Grants Officer in 
consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
9e Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which provided 
details of eleven applications which had been withdrawn. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
9f Variations to grants awarded  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which provided 
details of seven applications where variations had been agreed since the last 
meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
9g Events attended  
The Committee noted a report of the Chief Grants Officer regarding the key 
meetings and events attended by Members and officers since the last meeting.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
The Chairman introduced the recent rise of reports of hate crime, and advised 
the Committee that the possibility of making funds available from Bridge House 
Estates for a one-off programme looking at resilience and community cohesion 
might be raised at a meeting of the Court of Common Council. Members 
supported the need to consider this issue and discussed the governance 
arrangements that would inform such a programme.  The Chief Grants Officer 

Page 7



stated that there was no easy solution but he would continue to monitor the 
position and take views from other funders and grantees working in this area. 
He would liaise with other departments in the Corporation with regard to 
developing any response needed. 
 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
There was no other business. 
 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 
Item No.     Exempt Paragraphs 
12-13       3 
14-15      - 
 

13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2016 
be agreed as an accurate record.  
 
Members received an update on the UK Consortium LGBT. 
 

14. PIPELINE OF PRO-ACTIVE STRATEGIC GRANTS  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer outlining the 
pipeline for strategic grants. 
 

15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There was no other business. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 3.30 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
Contact Officer: Philippa Sewell  
tel. no.: 020 7332 1426 
philippa.sewell@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 8



 

 

The City Bridge Trust Committee – Outstanding Actions 
 

Item Date Action 
Officer 

responsible 

To be 
completed/ 
progressed 

to next stage 

Progress Update 

1. 14 July 2016 

5. Organisational Chart 
6. An organisational chart be circulated 

showing existing and new members 
of staff linked to the Trust’s work, 
and an indication of where these 
were being funded from. 

CBT team September 
2016 

Circulated August 2016 

2. 14 July 2016 

Geographical Leads 
A note be circulated outlining the 
geographical leads within the CBT 
team.  

CBT team September 
2016 

Circulated August 2016 

3. 14 July 2016 
Communications 
Include dates on media coverage 
table included in the CGO report. 

Media Officer 
September 
2016 and 
ongoing  

 

4. 14 July 2016 

Philanthropy strands 
Further details regarding future 
funding of Heart of the City and its 
long-term sustainability, and of Spice 
(Time Credits) be brought to a future 
Committee meeting. 
Further details regarding funding of 
City Philanthropy- a wealth of 
opportunity and London's Giving be 
brought to September committee 
meeting  

CBT team 

November 
2016 

September  

2016 

 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



 

 

Item Date Action 
Officer 

responsible 

To be 
completed/ 
progressed 

to next stage 

Progress Update 

5. 14 July 2016 

Strategic Initiatives 
A report analysing the outcomes of 
strategic initiatives be presented at 
the November Committee meeting. 
The pipeline report should in future 
be updated clearly to identify the 
changes since the last report  

CBT team November 
2016 

 

6 14 July 2016 

Philanthropy review 
A report providing actions to be 
considered following the review will 
be presented to the September 
Committee meeting  

CBT team 
September 

2016 
 

 
 

P
age 10



Committee:  
The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

Dated:  
22nd September 2016 
 

Subject:  
Progress Report 
 

Public 
 

Report of:  
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This is a regular report by the Chief Grants Officer. 
 

Recommendation 
 

That the report be noted. 
 

Main Report 
 

Key Sector Context 
 
1. The Select Committee on Charities was set up on 25 May 2016 to consider 

issues related to sustaining the charity sector and the challenges of charity 
governance. The Committee, chaired by Baroness Pitkeathley has now had 
all evidence submitted and will report by 31 March 2017.  

 
2. With the charitable sector having undergone significant change over recent 

years, the Committee is looking to understand the pressures faced across the 
sector by charities and make sure that the charitable sector in England and 
Wales remains sustainable and has appropriate resources available to them 
to meet their charitable purposes.  

 
3. This inquiry is intended to be an opportunity to engage positively with charities 

and the voluntary sector, collate examples of best practice, innovation and 
ideas to bring the sector together to make sure that it can thrive.  

 
4. The Charity Commission published research in June 2016 indicating that 

public trust in charities is in decline.  The research reports that on a scale from 
1 to 10, trust in charities has fallen from 6.7 to 5.7. The analysis behind this 
fall identifies issues such as fundraising methods that make people feel 
uncomfortable; a view that too much is spent on salaries and „administration 
costs‟; and a lack of understanding about how a charity is run and managed. 

 
5. Karl Wilding, Director of Public Policy and Volunteering at the National 

Council of Voluntary Organisations (which is an existing CBT grantee),  has 
blogged:  „We have consistently received advice that simply saying we do 
good, and ignoring concerns about how we do good, will not work. We have to 
show the world that charity is changing.  This means setting our own, higher 
standards in relation to fundraising. It means strengthening our governance. It 
means upping our game on transparency and accountability. It means getting 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

http://www.parliament.uk/documents/lords-committees/charities/Charities-call-for-evidence.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/public-trust-in-charities-has-fallen-reports-charity-commission


better at reporting our impact and showing why and how we make a 
difference.‟ 

 
6. At the same time, a new Fundraising Regulator has been established to take 

over the Code of Fundraising Practice from the Institute of Fundraising and 
take on the Fundraising Standards Board‟s workload which includes the code 
and rules for street and door-to-door fundraising.  This will be led by Stephen 
Dunmore, former chief executive of the Big Lottery Fund, who has been 
appointed interim chief executive. 

 
7. All of this underlines the significance and the timing of the Trust‟s current 

Quinquennial review. 
 
City Bridge Trust Quinquennial Review 
 
8. As you know, Sufina Ahmad has now been seconded from the Big Lottery 

London Team as Head of the Quinquennial Strategy Review – working with 
the City Bridge Trust team and reporting to your Director. She has initially 
prioritised meeting with the Trust‟s team and officers within the Corporation to 
learn more about their perspective on City Bridge Trust‟s work.  She has been 
doing some external facing work with a small number of stakeholders too, 
including working with the two consultants commissioned to develop research 
pieces by the end of September 2016, on an analysis of need in London, and 
models of best practice in grant making.  The level of external facing work will 
increase from October.  

 
9. Sufina is finalising a more detailed project plan and Communications Strategy 

for the Quinquennial Review this month.  These plans will build on the 
proposals shared by your Chief Grants Officer in the previous two committee 
meetings. 

 
10. She looks forward to beginning work with the Committee on developing the 

Quinquennial Review, particularly through the Strategic Away Half Day in 
October.  

 
Philanthropy Update 
 
11. You received a summary of the external report on your philanthropy work at 

your last committee.  Since then, considerable work has been undertaken to 
consider the recommendations and develop a strategy and implementation 
plan.  This work has included:  

 a follow up meeting with the external evaluator, your Chairman and 
Director;  

 planning of an over-arching draft city philanthropy/giving strategy which 
has the potential to be jointly agreed by the Trust, the Corporation and 
Mansion House; 

 3 month grant extensions to support your current strategic initiatives 
City Philanthropy and London‟s Giving to ensure they are able to 
continue operations whilst the above strategy is developed and the 
appropriate consideration and agreements sought; 

Page 12

http://www.institute-of-fundraising.org.uk/home/


 following the recommendation for more co-location, an immediate 
decision was taken for the Director of City Philanthropy to spend more 
time based in the CBT office with the aim of re-location full-time by the 
end of November. 

 
12. A worked up draft strategy and implementation plan will be brought to your 

November Committee. 
 
 
City Bridge Trust 20th Anniversary – Update  
 
13. As you all know, last year was CBT‟s 20th Anniversary. As we prepare the 

2015-2016 Annual Review, below is a summary of what we hoped to achieve 
in the year against what we did achieve and what continue to be works in 
progress: 

 
 

Review & Analysis Achieved/not 
/work in progress 

Notes 

 Key successes & 
challenges will be 
reviewed and captured & 
distilled into 20 case 
studies 

Achieved These formed the basis of 
your annual review – 20 
Years 20 Stories 

 The operating 
environment of the Trust 
is reviewed and the 
Trust‟s mission, vision, 
and values are reviewed 
in light of this 

Achieved You considered and agreed 
amendments at Committee. 

 The Trust‟s website will 
be reviewed ensuring it 
enables learning & 
collaboration, whilst 
better profiling the work 
of the grantees 

Not achieved This took longer than hoped. 
Phase one of the website is 
now launched with the 
infrastructure to develop the 
learning and collaboration 
piece, but this is still a work 
in progress. 

 Messaging to reflect 20th 
anniversary to be 
developed & uploaded 

Achieved  

 
More Strategic Grant-Making 

  

 Secure additional funds 
to increase the grant-
spend to £20M per year 

Achieved An increase from c£15M to 
c.£20M was agreed. 

 Dedicate additional 
resource to strategic 
grants to support the 
voluntary sector:  

Work in 
Progress 

This provided the basis for 
the collaborative and 
detailed work to develop the 
„Way Ahead‟ report and work 

Page 13



to deliver its 
recommendations is on-
going and a full report for 
decision will come to you 
November Committee. 

 Dedicate additional 
resource to strategic 
grants to support entry 
into employment for 
people who are 
disabled/suffering from 
mental health issues: 

Work in  
Progress 

Your officers have been 
scoping the current level of 
provision within both the 
corporate and voluntary 
sectors with a view to 
drafting a programme of 
action for consideration by 
your Committee later this 
year. 

Funder Plus & Learning 
Programme 

  

 Review the funder plus 
offer and launch new 
offer 

Part achieved An initial review took place 
but recommendations 
remain to be considered and 
a new offer to be developed.  

 Launch a learning 
programme to show case 
examples of good 
practice 

Not achieved  This was not achieved.  It 
will be a priority as part of 
the quinquennial review. 

A Stronger Profile for 
Grantees 
Work & CBT 

  

 Launch new 
communications plan 
and develop new 
elevator pitch and logo 

Achieved 20 special unrestricted 
grants agreed to early-
funded, successful charities.  
This used to both profile the 
work of those charities and 
the work of the Trust.  This 
led to some increased media 
coverage including Radio 
London. 

 Amplify/co-brand/partner 
on events 8-12 

Achieved  

 
 
 
 

Page 14



Communications 
 
14. A table showing our recent publicity is set out below: 

Charity Publication Circulation Description Reach Date 

City 
Bridge 
Trust 

Charity 
Times 

Bi-monthly  
8,500 

City Bridge Trust is referred to in a Charity Times 
blog by Richard Litchfield, CEO of Eastside 
Primetimers, on the need for charitable funders 
to adopt a ‘grants plus’ approach. 
 

National & Online 15/08/2016 

Various  Charity 
Times 

Bi-monthly  
8,500 

David Farnsworth, Director of City Bridge Trust 
is quoted in Charity Times as the Trust 
announces that it has awarded grants totalling 
£312,100 to organisations to help Londoners 
engage in the performing arts. 
 

National & Online 29/07/2016 

Thames 
21 

Kensington 
Chelsea & 
Westminster 
Today 

Weekly 
10,000 

City Bridge Trust is mentioned in an article on 
the work of charity Thames21 in Kensington, 
Chelsea & Westminster Today. The Trust’s 
funding for a training programme is highlighted. 
 

West London 23/08/2016 

P
age 15

http://www.charitytimes.com/ct/BLOG-time-for-trusts-to-embrace-a-grants-plus-model.php
http://www.charitytimes.com/ct/City-Bridge-Trust-awards-over-GBP300000-to-community-arts-groups.php
http://www.kcwtoday.co.uk/2016/08/thames21/
http://www.kcwtoday.co.uk/2016/08/thames21/


Central Grants Programme 
 
15. The Central Grants Programme (CGP) webpage 

[www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/centralgrantsprogramme] launched on Monday 15th 
August and all four funding themes opened to applications.   

 
16. From an operational perspective the launch went smoothly, with no issues 

having been reported to date from applicants in terms of the website, 
electronic application form functionality or PDF downloads, which is good 
news.  We shall continue to monitor all incoming feedback and make any 
necessary changes. 

 
17. Since going „live‟ the CGP webpage has been visited over 400 times.  We 

have received a steady flow of phone calls and emails into the CGP inbox, 
primarily from students seeking reassurance that they are eligible to apply for 
funding, but also from organisations requesting further information on the 
other funding themes. 

 
18. In terms of next steps, we shall continue to generate interest in the CGP and 

ensure that a good range of quality applications are received for grant-giving 
committees to consider in due course. 

 
19. Should you have any enquiries, please do get in touch with Scott Nixon, 

Grants Project manager. 

Stepping Stones 

20. The third round of the Stepping Stones Fund is currently underway. This is a 
partnership programme between UBS and the Trust, offering grant funding to 
charities and social enterprises in Greater London who wish to engage with 
the social investment market. The Trust received 77 applications; far higher 
than the 41 and 36 who submitted proposals in previous rounds and, we think, 
attributable to the extensive promotional work done by the Trust, UBS, and 
the organisations who participate in the programme‟s steering group. The total 
application value in this third round was £3,882,206, and with only £700,000 
available, officers worked to short-list the strongest proposals before the 
interview stage. 47 applicants were rejected (summarised elsewhere in your 
papers), one withdrew, and the remaining 29 were invited to submit a full 
proposal.   

 
21. The Trust will offer guidance for those shortlisted applicants (as well as 

feedback for unsuccessful applicants) and UBS will run surgery sessions to 
help organisations prepare their detailed bids. Full proposals are expected by 
September 23rd before panel assessment meetings at the bank in mid-
October. Following this, grant recommendations will be made to agree the 
distribution of round three of the Stepping Stones Fund. The Trust continues 
to discuss the programme with a range of possible co-funders, some of whom 
will participate in the panel meetings at UBS. Given the application levels 
seen for round 3 of Stepping Stones, there appears to be strong continued 
interest in the scheme. 

Page 16

http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/centralgrantsprogramme
www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/centralgrantsprogramme


 
LGBT Seminar – Supporting sustainability of services 
 

22. You will recall that officers were asked by your Committee to organise a 
seminar – in conjunction with Trust for London and London Councils – for 
LGBT organisations to consider current funding threats to that sector and how 
it can be made more robust and key services maintained. The half-day event, 
kindly chaired by Edward Lord, took place in the Basinghall Suite on 21st July. 

 
23. Of the 60 confirmed attendees only 4 failed to show, which is a remarkable 

turn-out for an event of this kind. Those present contributed honestly and 
positively and, in the workshop session, delivered a clear set of issues and 
suggestions as to how funders, commissioners and organisations themselves 
could help build the sustainability of services to this community. Feedback 
from delegates was very positive, with all welcoming the initiative taken by the 
Trust 

 
24. Your officers, with Mr Lord‟s guidance, are keen to take forward some of the 

key suggestions which arose, in conjunction where possible with Trust for 
London, London Councils, and other key supporters. To this end it is 
envisaged that a report will be presented at a future Committee for your 
consideration. 

 

Wembley National Stadium Trust  
 
25. The Wembley National Stadium Trust, which members will recall is managed 

under contract as an independent grant-maker by the City Bridge Trust, 
continues to develop and expand its work.  (WNST is funded through a “top 
slice” 1% of the Stadium‟s annual income).  To date, the Trust has delivered 
two grants programmes, one funding community sports work in LB Brent 
(where the stadium is located) and a second working across London to 
expand the opportunities available for disabled people to play sport in the 
capital.  It has always been the Trustees‟ intention to introduce a third strand 
outside of London, in recognition that Wembley is, of course, the English 
national football stadium.  A new grants programme “Every Player Counts” 
has therefore been developed over recent months to fulfil this ambition. 

 
26. “Every Player Counts” is a formal partnership between WNST and the EFL 

Trust (the umbrella body for the community trusts associated with the 72 
football league clubs ie those outside of the Premier League), with input from 
the FA, to deliver a wide-ranging programme of disability football across the 
country.  WNST will be providing £1m over three years to fund grants to 25 of 
the club community trusts up and down the country – from Portsmouth to 
Carlisle, Plymouth to Peterborough.  Each project will focus on the specific 
gaps in disability football provision in their locality.  Some, such as 
Shrewsbury Town, will run general, pan-disability, activities in areas not 
previously served; others will offer an impairment specific project  - for 
example Barnsley will focus on autism, Milton Keynes Dons on mental 
health.  Another model promoted by Leeds United and Reading, will work with 

Page 17



local grassroots clubs to develop their own, very local, disability football 
expertise. 

 
27. For its part, the EFL Trust will provide a programme manager from its own 

resources, who will oversee the scheme on a day-to-day basis.  The 
programme manager will work closely with the WNST Chief Executive, who is 
seconded from CBT.  Colleagues at the EFL Trust already know each of the 
club trusts well and can use these relationships to ensure that this programme 
delivers to the maximum.  They also have existing monitoring and evaluation 
systems in place with the clubs from previous grants programmes, which can 
collect and collate all of the information WNST needs to ensure that each 
grant is performing as it should. 

 
28. This is an exciting new development for WNST, which will both greatly extend 

the Trust‟s reach and directly connect the Stadium into a large part of the 
“football family”. 

 
29. More details of the programme and a full list of the grants awarded can be 

found at http://www.wnst.org.uk/every-player-counts/ 
 
CBT Volunteering Day 
 
30. Two weeks ago, your officers spent their annual team volunteering day at one 

of your grantees: Sutton Community Farm.  The farm sits on a beautiful 7.1 
acre smallholding in the quiet hills of Surrey, with views towards the skyline of 
central London.  It cultivates over 100 varieties of vegetables using organic 
principles.  Its purpose is to increase access to fresh, healthy sustainable food 
and provide a shared space for people to cultivate skills get exercise and 
make new friends. The organisation received a grant of £90,000 over three 
years in July this year towards the salary of Head of Production and a 
contribution towards the General Manager‟s post.  

 
31. The staff team of fourteen (including two from the City Surveyor‟s team which 

manages Bridge House Estates) were able to provide help to prune the 
Farm‟s tomato vines.  These were housed in one of their many polytunnels 
which greatly increase production and allow the farm to grow a variety of 
vegetables. 

 
32. After lunch team members moved onto harvesting the potato crop and dug up 

around 150kgs of fresh potatoes, many of which would later go to into the 
Farm‟s vegetable boxes which it delivers across South London. 

 
360 Giving 
 
33. 360Giving was set up in 2013 to support funders to publish their grants data in 

an open, comparable format that anyone can freely access and use.  It aims 
to improve transparency amongst grantmakers and importantly to make sure 
grants data shared can be easily used and compared to inform better grant-
making.  In September 2016 City Bridge Trust published details of over 500 

Page 18

http://www.wnst.org.uk/every-player-counts/


grants made between September 2013 and July 2016 in the project‟s open 
data format.   

 
34. Whilst our grant-making has always been in public, this takes our commitment 

to transparency to a new level, allowing our data to be easily compared 
alongside other funders including Big Lottery Fund, Esmee Fairbairn 
Foundation and BBC Children in Need.  This will help those interested in the 
sector to identify trends such as shared areas of giving, geographic „cold-
spots‟ in giving and the average value of grants.  To make this easier, at the 
end of September 360 Giving will launch GrantNav – a new search platform 
which will allow users to easily search all the 360 data for which funder is 
funding what, where and for how much.  

 
35. The City Bridge Trust data can be accessed here: 

http://www.citybridgetrust.org.uk/learning-resources/360-giving/ 
 

36. More details about 360 Giving including the GrantNav tool are available here: 
http://www.threesixtygiving.org/ 

 

 
 
Grant Applications Summary 
 

37.  Your meeting today will consider 132 applications, including 20 grant 
recommendations as well as 19 grants to be noted as approved/ being 
considered by delegated authority, for a total recommended sum of 
£2,485,167.  If all recommendations are approved you will have spent 47% of 
your total grants budget for 2016/17 which is in line with targets.  The 
implications of today‟s recommendations are shown in Table 1 against the 
grants budget for 2016/17.   
 

38. Your 2016/17 grants budget was increased by £4,000,000 at the Court of 
Common Council in July 2015.  Table 1 shows how this has been allocated to 
the core grants budget and additional funding schemes.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

http://www.citybridgetrust.org.uk/learning-resources/360-giving/
http://www.threesixtygiving.org/


 
Table 1: Overall spend against 2016/17 budget 

 

  

Grants budget Grants 
spend 

% spend of 
annual budget 

Core 2016/17 Investing in Londoners grants budget 

Original Grants Budget £14,950,000     

20th anniversary budget uplift (20%) £800,000     

Write-Backs & Revocations £386,370     

Total Budget Available £16,136,370     

        

Previous Committee meetings       

May 2016   £3,312,925 21% 

July 2016   £1,810,650 11% 

Sub-total approved spend   £5,123,575 32% 

Remaining budget £11,012,795     

        

Today's recommendations       

September 2016   £2,485,167 15% 

Total annual spend   £7,608,742 47% 

Remaining budget £8,527,628     

 

Additional funding streams 

Anniversary programme: employability (20th anniversary budget uplift (40%)) 

2016/17 budget £1,600,000     

Carry forward 2015/16 (subject to 
approval) £1,200,000     

Spend at previous meetings   £0   

Recommended spend today   £0   

Total spend   £0   

Balance £2,800,000     

Anniversary programme: infrastructure support (20th anniversary budget uplift 
(40%)) 

2016/17 budget £1,600,000     

Carry forward 2015/16 (subject to 
approval) £850,000     

Spend at previous meetings   £0   

Recommended spend today   £0   

Total spend   £0   

Balance £2,450,000     

Annual funding for Prince's Trust funding (agreed Oct 14) 

Budget £1,000,000     

Total spend   £1,000,000   

Balance £0     

Page 20



39. Table 2 shows the grant awards you have made this financial year under Investing in Londoners and today‟s 

recommendations by programme.1 
 
Table 2: Investing in Londoners awards and recommendations by programme 

  
   

  Number of grants Value of grants 

Fund/Program Year to 
date 

Today's 
meetin
g 

Total % total 
grants 

Year to 
date 

Today's 
meeting 

Total % total 
value 

English for Speakers of Other Languages 1 2 3 3% £94,500 £198,900 £293,400 4% 

Improving Londoners' Mental Health 9 3 12 12% £868,620 £462,470 £1,331,090 17% 

Improving London's Environment 3 1 4 4% £187,800 £88,840 £276,640 4% 

Making London More Inclusive 7 9 16 16% £615,490 £729,690 £1,345,180 18% 

Making London Safer 2 0 2 2% £320,560 £0 £320,560 4% 

Older Londoners 7 4 11 11% £774,600 £205,500 £980,100 13% 

Reducing Poverty 8 3 11 11% 
£1,016,25

0 £267,600 £1,283,850 17% 

Resettlement & Rehabilitation of 
Offenders 1 2 3 3% £90,000 £249,970 £339,970 4% 

Stepping Stones 0 0 0 0% £0 £0 £0 0% 

Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector 5 0 5 5% £449,520 £66,750 £516,270 7% 

Strategic Initiatives 13 8 21 21% £695,555 £197,047 £892,602 12% 

Eco-audits 1 7 8 8% £2,600 £18,400 £21,000 0% 

Access Audits 3 0 3 3% £8,080 £0 £8,080 0% 

Grand total 60 39 99 100% 
£5,123,57

5 £2,485,167 £7,608,742 100% 

                                                           
1
 Making London More Inclusive excludes access audits which are shown separately. 

P
age 21



40. Chart 1 shows the flow of applications received over the last year and action 
taken, allowing any seasonal variations to be seen. This excludes Strategic 
Initiatives as they are usually solicited rather than open programmes. 

 

 
 
41. Between March 2015 and 7th September 2016 636 applications were received 

for the Investing in Londoners programmes. 179 applications have been 
approved and 213 declined (the remainder are pending).  The spikes in 
applications seen in November 2015 and August 2016 are due to the closing 
date for rounds of the Stepping Stones Fund.  Otherwise applications are 
fairly evenly spread across the year, which is comparable to previous years. 

 
42. Officers are asking you to consider 132 applications at this meeting. Of these, 

20 are recommended for a grant and 19 are reported at this meeting as 
having been approved under the scheme of delegations.  A further 84 are 
recommended for rejection.  6 applications have been withdrawn by 
applicants and 3 have been lapsed following several unsuccessful attempts 
by officers for further information (see Table 3). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2015 2016

Grand Total 27 27 24 32 27 33 23 31 67 27 23 36 30 28 35 25 34 104 3

Today's meeting 2 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 2 8 11 10 15 17 9 47 0

Pending 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 3 2 4 6 8 8 25 57 3

Declined 15 11 5 17 13 20 14 14 33 13 9 15 13 10 11 0 0 0 0

Approved 10 16 19 14 14 12 7 16 33 13 9 11 2 2 1 0 0 0 0

27 27 24 
32 

27 
33 

23 
31 

67 

27 23 

36 
30 28 

35 
25 

34 

104 

3 

-10

10

30

50

70

90

110

Chart 1: Applications received and action taken 
between March 2015 and 7th Sept 2016 

Approved Declined Pending Today's meeting

Page 22



Table 3: Action to be taken on applications today 
 

Investing in Londoner's applications     

Action to be taken  Number Amount 

Applications recommended for grant to Committee 20 £2,146,650 

Funding approved by delegated authority up to 
£10,000 (to note)  

10 £35,310 

Funding approved by delegated authority from 
£10,001 - £25,000 (to note)  

2 £41,030 

Funding approved by delegated authority from 
£25,001 - £50,000 (to note) 

7 £262,177 

Applications recommended for rejection 84 n/a 

Withdrawn applications (to note) 6 n/a 

Applications lapsed (to note) 3 n/a 

Total Investing in Londoners applications 132 £2,485,167 

Additional funding stream applications 0 £0 

 

David Farnsworth 
Chief Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3713 
E: david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 23

mailto:david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Committee Date: 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 22 September 2016 

Subject: 
Risk Register for Bridge House Estates (charity number: 
1035628) 

Public 

Report of: Chamberlain 

For Decision 
Report author: 
Steven Reynolds, Chamberlain’s Department 

 
Summary 

 
The report provides this Committee’s section of the key risks register for Bridge 
House Estates (BHE) for review.  The Charity Commission’s Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP) requires that the register is reviewed annually to 
ensure that existing risks are reconsidered, any new risks are identified and that 
appropriate measures are in place to mitigate those risks.  BHE is managed by six 
Committees or Boards, each of which is required to review and monitor risks for the 
services they oversee e.g. the Planning and Transporation Committee manages 
risks relating to the five bridges maintained by the Trust.  Accordingly, a separte risk 
report has been prepared for each managing Committee or Board. 
 
Three of the risks on the BHE risk register have been identified as relating to the 
services overseen by the City Bridge Trust Committee.  These relate to financial loss 
through fraud or theft, negative publicity leading to reputational damage and major IS 
systems failure – the three risks are detailed at Appendix 2.  The first two risks are 
assessed as green with a score of two (on a risk scale from one to the higest risk 
score of thirty two) which is unchanged compared to last year.  The third risk is also 
assessed as green but with a score of three, which is an improvement on the amber 
assessment and score of 6 last year.  The improved score is due to the grants 
system GIFTS now running from a more resilient server.  
 

Recommendations 
 
Members are asked to: 
 

 review the three risks currently on the register for this Committee and confirm 
that appropriate control measures are in place; and 

 

 confirm that there are no other risks relating to the services overseen by the 
City Bridge Trust Committee which should be added to the BHE risk register. 

 
 

Main Report 
 

Background 

1. In accordance with the Charity Commission’s Statement of Recommended 
Practice (SORP), trustees are required to confirm in the charity’s annual report 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



that any major risks to which the charity is exposed have been identified and 
reviewed and that systems are established to mitigate those risks.  This 
Committee’s section of the key risks register for Bridge House Estates (BHE) is 
set out for review. 
 

2. BHE is managed by six Committees or Boards each of which is required to 
review and monitor risks for the services they oversee e.g. the Planning and 
Transporation Committee manages risks relating to the five bridges maintained 
by the trust.  Accordingly, a separte risk report has been prepared for each 
managing Committee or Board.   
 

3. The Charities SORP requires that the register is reviewed annually to ensure that 
existing risks are reconsidered and any new risks are identified. 

 
Review of Risks 

4. The method of assessing risk reflects the City of London’s standard approach to 
risk assessment as set out in its Risk Management Strategy approved by the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee.  The City of London Corporation risk 
matrix, which explains how risks are assessed and scored, is attached at 
Appendix 1 of this report.  Risk scores range from one, being lowest risk, to the 
higest risk score of thirty two.  These scores are summarised into 3 broad groups, 
each with increasing risk, and categorised green, amber or red.   
 

5. Each risk in the register has been considered by the responsible officer within the 
Corporation who is referred to as the ‘Risk Owner’ in the register. 
 

6. The City Bridge Trust Committee’s element of the BHE risk register is shown at 
Appendix 2 and contains three risks, the first relating to financial loss through 
fraud or theft, the second to negative publicity leading to reputational damage 
and third, major IS failure.  Controls are in place to mitigate these risks, including 
an open, transparent and rigorous grants assessment process and, in relation to 
IT systems, the main grants stystem GIFTS now running from an Agilisys data 
centre which is more resilient than the previous server at Guildhall.  The first two 
risks are assessed as green with a score of two (on a risk scale from one to the 
higest risk score of thirty two) which is unchanged compared to last year.  The 
third risk is also assessed as green but with a score of three, which is an 
improvement on the previous amber assessment with a score of 6 due to the 
more resilient and offsite server.  The current mitigating actions are considered 
appropriate at this time. 
  

Conclusion 

7. The risks faced by the charity have been reviewed and three of those risks have 
been identified as relating to the services overseen by the City Bridge Trust 
Committee.  The first relates to financial loss through fraud or theft, the second to 
negative publicity leading to reputational damage and the third to major IS failure.  
The Committee is requested to confirm that appropriate control measures are in 
place for these risks and that there are no other risks that should be added to the 
BHE register in relation to services overseen by the Committee. 
 

Page 26



Appendices 

 Appendix 1 - City of London Corporation Risk Matrix 

 Appendix 2 - Charity Risk Register 
 
 
Contact: 
Steven Reynolds 
Group Accountant 
 
T: 020 7332 1382 
E: steven.reynolds@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



City of London Corporation Risk Matrix (Black and white version)  
Note: A risk score is calculated by assessing the risk in terms of likelihood and impact. By using the likelihood and impact criteria below (top left (A) and bottom right (B) respectively) it is possible to calculate a 
risk score. For example a risk assessed as Unlikely (2) and with an impact of Serious (2) can be plotted on the risk scoring grid, top right (C) to give an overall risk score of a green (4). Using the risk score 
definitions bottom right (D) below, a green risk is one that just requires actions to maintain that rating.   

RED Urgent action required to reduce rating 

AMBER Action required to maintain or reduce rating 

GREEN Action required to maintain rating 

Rare (1) Unlikely (2) Possible (3) Likely (4) 

Criteria Less than 10% 10 – 40% 40 – 75% More than 75% 

Probability 
Has happened 

rarely/never 
before 

Unlikely to occur Fairly likely to occur 
More likely to occur 

than not 

Time period 
Unlikely to occur 

in a 10 year 
period 

Likely to occur 
within a 10 year 

period 

Likely to occur once 
within a one year 

period 

Likely to occur once 
within three months 

Numerical  

Less than one 
chance in a 

hundred 
thousand (<10-5) 

Less than one 
chance in ten 

thousand (<10-4) 

Less than one 
chance in a thousand 

(<10-3) 

Less than one chance 
in a hundred       

(<10-2) 

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

Impact 

X 
Minor 

(1) 
Serious 

(2) 
Major 

(4) 
Extreme 

(8) 

Likely 
(4) 

4 
Green 

8 
Amber 

16 
Red 

32 
Red 

Possible 
(3) 

3 
Green 

6 
Amber 

12 
Amber 

24 
Red 

Unlikely 
( 2) 

2 
Green 

4 
Green 

8 
Amber 

16 
Red 

Rare 
(1) 

1 
Green 

2 
Green 

4 
Green 

8 
Amber 

Impact title Definitions  
Minor (1) Service delivery/performance: Minor impact on service, typically up to one day. Financial: 

financial loss up to 5% of budget. Reputation: Isolated service user/stakeholder complaints 
contained within business unit/division. Legal/statutory: Litigation claim or find less than 
£5000. Safety/health: Minor incident including injury to one or more individuals. Objectives: 
Failure to achieve team plan objectives. 

Serious (2) Service delivery/performance: Service disruption 2 to 5 days. Financial: Financial loss up to 
10% of budget. Reputation: Adverse local media coverage/multiple service user/stakeholder 
complaints. Legal/statutory: Litigation claimable fine between £5000 and £50,000. 
Safety/health: Significant injury or illness causing short-term disability to one or more persons. 
Objectives: Failure to achieve one or more service plan objectives. 

Major (4) Service delivery/performance: Service disruption > 1 - 4 weeks. Financial: Financial loss up 
to 20% of budget. Reputation: Adverse national media coverage 1 to 3 days. Legal/statutory: 
Litigation claimable fine between £50,000 and £500,000. Safety/health: Major injury or 
illness/disease causing long-term disability to one or more people objectives: Failure to 
achieve a strategic plan objective. 

Extreme (8) Service delivery/performance: Service disruption > 4 weeks. Financial: Financial loss up to 
35% of budget. Reputation: National publicity more than three days. Possible resignation 
leading member or chief officer. Legal/statutory: Multiple civil or criminal suits. Litigation claim 
or find in excess of £500,000. Safety/health: Fatality or life-threatening illness/disease (e.g. 
mesothelioma) to one or more persons. Objectives: Failure to achieve a major corporate 
objective. 

(A) Likelihood criteria

(B) Impact criteria

(C) Risk scoring grid

(D) Risk score definitions

This is an extract from the City of London Corporate Risk Management 
Strategy, published in May 2014. 

Contact the Corporate Risk Advisor for further information. Ext 1297 

October 2015 

Appendix 1 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 30



BHE Risks to be considered by the CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE (3 risks)

Likelihood Impact Rating Direction Likelihood Impact Rating

Grants

1 Financial loss through fraud or 
theft. Chief Grants Officer The City Bridge 

Trust

Rigorous grants assessment and 
grants management systems.  
Comprehensive checks and balances 
before payments authorised.  Grants 
management and financial system 
approved and regulalrly reviewed by 
Internal and External Audit.  Due 
Diligence Review completed by 
Internal Audit December 2012.

Rare Serious Green
2 ↔ Continue with current course of 

action Rare Serious Green
2

2
Negative publicity and damage 
to the City of London 
Corporation's reputation.

Chief Grants Officer The City Bridge 
Trust

The Trust operates an open and 
transparent grant assessment and 
decision-making process.  It works 
closely with City of London 
Corporation's Public Relations Office.

In addition, the City Bridge Trust 
Committee approved a 
Communication Strategy at its July 
meeting.

Rare Serious Green
2 ↔ Continue with current course of 

action Rare Serious Green
2

3

Major failure in IS systems 
leading to significant disruption 
to business, inability to meet 
legal or regulatory 
requirements, effect on health 
and safety, financial or 
reputational loss.

Chief Grants Officer The City Bridge 
Trust

The Gifts System is now running 
from one of the Agilisys data centres 
which is more resilient than the 
original servers at the Guildhall.  If 
the Agilisys data centres fail then the 
service will be resumed within 6 
hours.

Possible Minor Green
3 ↓ Continue with current course of 

action Possible Minor Green
3

Appendix 2

Target Risk
CommitteeRisk 

No. Risk (Short description)  Risk Owner Existing Controls
Current Risk

Planned Actions

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 32



Investing in Londoners 

INDEX OF GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS 

Ref Requested Recommended 
No. Organisation 

English for Speakers of Other Languages 

a) 13458 Afghan Association Paiwand

b) 13357 Baytree Centre 

Total English for Speakers of Other Languages 

Improving London's Environment 

c) 13446 School Food Matters

Total Improving London's Environment 

Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

d) 13472 Church of England's Children's

e) 

f) 

Society 

13269 East London Out Project 

13359 Groundswell Network Support UK 

Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

Making London More Inclusive 

g) 13384 Highbury Roundhouse Youth and
Community Centre 

h) 13344 Kith & Kids

i) 13462 Noah's Ark Children's Hospice

j) 13343 Play, Adventure and Community
Enrichment (PACE) 

k) 13349 South London Fine Art Gallery and
Library 

I) 13295 St Peter's Bethnal Green

Total Making London More Inclusive 

Older Londoners 

m) 13502 Age UK Richmond Upon Thames

n) 13517 Chinese National Healthy Living
Centre 

Total Older Londoners 

Amount 

£89,823 

£148,832 

£238,655 

£87,100 

£87,100 

£180,532 

£145,936 

£169,685 

£496,153 

£100,000 

£125,057 

£132,632 

£96,672 

£100,000 

£100,000 

£654,361 

£112,238 

£103,000 

£215,238 

Amount 

£90,000 

£108,900 

£198,900 

£88,840 

£88,840 

£180,000 

£147,470 

£135,000 

£462,470 

£100,000 

£126,000 

£120,000 

£96,500 

£100,000 

£87,620 

£630,120 

£102,000 

£80,000 

£182,000 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



Page 34



Page 35

Agenda Item 7a



Page 36



Page 37

Agenda Item 7b



Page 38



Page 39

Agenda Item 7c



Page 40



Page 41

Agenda Item 7d



Page 42



Page 43

Agenda Item 7e



Page 44



Page 45

Agenda Item 7f



Page 46



Page 47

Agenda Item 7g



Page 48



Page 49

Agenda Item 7h



Page 50



Page 51

Agenda Item 7i



Page 52



Page 53

Agenda Item 7j



Page 54



Page 55

Agenda Item 7k



Page 56



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Page 59

Agenda Item 7l



Page 60



Page 61

Agenda Item 7m



Page 62



Page 63

Agenda Item 7n



Page 64



Page 65

Agenda Item 7o



Page 66



Page 67

Agenda Item 7p



Page 68



Page 69

Agenda Item 7q



Page 70



Page 71

Agenda Item 7r



Page 72



Page 73

Agenda Item 7s



Page 74



Page 75

Agenda Item 7t



Page 76



Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Committee 
 

Dated: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

22nd September 2016 

Subject: 
Applications recommended for rejection 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Decision 
 

 
Summary 

 

This report and the accompanying schedule outlines a total of 37 grant 
applications or Eco-Audit requests that, for the reason(s) identified, are 
recommended for rejection.  

 
Recommendation 

 

 Members are asked to: 
 

 Reject the grant applications detailed in the accompanying schedule 
 

Main Report 
 

1. There are a total of 37 applications recommended for rejection at this 
meeting. They are listed within categories in the accompanying 
schedule. In each case the “purpose” that is used to describe the 
application is that provided by the applicant organisation. All the 
recommendations are based on criteria set out in your Policy Guidance.  

 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in the Members’ 
Reading Room. If any Committee Member wishes to query any of the 
recommendations, this can either be done at the meeting, in which case 
the decision may be deferred while full details are provided to the 
Member concerned, or by contacting the Trust office in advance of the 
meeting so that an explanation can be provided prior to or at the 
meeting.  
 

 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8a

mailto:ciran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



 CBT IiL Recommended for Rejection 
 The City Bridge Trust Committee – 22nd September 2016 

 Summary of Recommendations for Rejection - Investing in Londoners 

 

 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 English for Speakers of Other Languages 

 13383 To improve the English language skills A proposal for ESOL tuition with associated £64,860 TW 
 Al-Khair Foundation of 90 women across six London befriending support. The latter component of Croydon 
 boroughs through ESOL Level 1 the proposal falls outside your funding 
 courses and a befriending scheme. priorities and, of the tuition, the applicant 
 proposes to pass funding on to another 
 organisation for delivery. You do not support 
 project work in this indirect manner, and so 
 this rejection is recommended. 

 13154 Wadajir will help vulnerable BAME Although the proposed activity meets your £62,104 JNM 
 Wadajir Somali women overcome language barriers criteria, this organisation's finances are Tower Hamlets 
 Community Centre and participate in more civic activities, unstable and its future is at risk: the 
 support their children at school, access organisation has insufficient income to 
 training, education and employment. deliver planned activity for the year and has 
 no reserves. Communication has not always 
 been straightforward and information has 
 not been forthcoming. 

 Total English for Speakers of Other Languages (2 items) £126,964 

P
age 81



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 Improving London's Environment 

 13356 Energy Renaissance - an innovative A request for a three week educational £27,950 TW 
 Cape Farewell Virtual Reality Experience that exhibit in a public space from which the level Westminster 
 promotes, inspires, and educates of London benefit will be very hard to 
 Londoners on ways to achieve, a determine. Whilst the request includes an 
 cleaner and healthier post-carbon urban associated school tour, the outcomes of this 
 future aspect of the work are not articulated in 
 sufficient detail. 

 Total Improving London's Environment (1 item) £27,950 

 Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

 13305 To provide counselling to children and The project's purpose and benefits do not £108,744 JXM 
 DAZU young people aged 5 to 18 in primary sufficiently address the required outcomes Enfield 
 and secondary schools and community of your 'Improving Londoners Mental Health' 
 based settings in Enfield. programme. In addition, the request seeks 
 to replace funding lost to a school 
 counselling project in 2014; as such the 
 request falls outside the scope of your 
 funding. 

 13448 An LGBT counseling and This application is of insufficient quality and £89,850 TB 
 Helios Foundation psychotherapy services,for low income does not show that concerns regarding Camden 
 people suffering with depression, financial reporting and management issues 
 loneliness, stress, effects of expressed at a previous grant assessment 
 discrimination, bereavement, drug & visit have been satisfactorily addressed. 
 alcohol dependency  past trauma. 

P
age 82



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13334 Develop practical materials and The proposed work does not entail delivery £79,983 SFJ 
 Maslaha networks to support the mental of specialist mental health services and Westminster 
 wellbeing of young Muslim men who therefore does not meet your Improving 
 have experienced the Criminal Justice Londoners' Mental Health programme 
 System (CJS) criteria. 

 13453 Therapist for children and young Your officer is not assured that the £37,412 SAR 
 Maypole Project people: providing therapies as well as governance and staffing structures support Bromley 
 co-ordination of child/young person satisfactory standards and processes of 
 support and activities accountability. 

 13370 Partnership project to help BME women The charity has no track record, or has little £58,310 SD 
 Southall Community from Southall gain access to mental experience, of addressing specific mental Ealing 
 Alliance health services and support, increasing health needs working with BAME 
 their resilience to deal with mental communities. The delivery of the project is 
 health issues through 5 community groups which raises 
 concerns about accountability for the actual 
 front line work. 

 Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health (5 items) £374,299 

 Making London More Inclusive 

 13519 AND Inclusive seeks to improve access Your programme funds work that directly £99,468 TB 
 A New Direction to arts and cultural experiences for engages with, and shows the outcomes Hackney 
 London Limited children and young people with special accruing to, disabled people during the grant 
 educational needs across London. period, which is not the case with this 
 application. The project's immediate 
 beneficiaries are Special Education 
 teachers, whose professional development 
 is their employers' (local authorities) 
 responsibility. 

P
age 83



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13251 Practical, engaging and creative Working with young people with SEN and £54,904 JNM 
 Exposure learning and work experience, enabling disabilities is a core element of this Haringey 
 Organisation Limited young people with disabilities to develop organisation's work, for which they have 
 life-changing communication skills and confirmed grant funding from Big Lottery's 
 confidence, supporting them into Reaching Communities until December 
 adulthood. 2017. In addition, the organisation has 
 excessive reserves and is in a position to 
 self-fund. 

 13483 Growing Our Band is designed to From the information provided it is not clear £33,000 SFJ 
 Orchestra of the Age engage young disabled people in the extent to which the proposed project Islington 
 of Enlightenment creative, high-quality music activity, falls outside the remit of the schools 
 learning to play instruments and to themselves. 
 perform as an ensemble. 

 13355 We are offering outdoor respite activity A very poorly presented application with £66,500 SFJ 
 Pre-school Learning breaks for children with disabilities and conflicting information and which fails to City 
 Alliance their families by providing play and meet your criteria for funding. 
 learning outdoors. 

 13480 To provide peer support and A very poorly presented application where £30,000 TB 
 Spinal Injuries volunteering opportunities for spinal financial information is incorrect or absent. It Outside London 
 Association cord injured Londoners. would appear that much of the proposed 
 work falls outside your priorities. 

 13495 City Bridge kindly granted us Access A poorly presented application where the £10,975 JXM 
 St John's Church Audit funding, which has highlighted commitment to improve access is not clear. Kensington & 
 Chelsea areas of work that needs to be done to The information provided raises concerns Chelsea 
 make the building more accessible. about the promotion of religion being a core 
 objective for the application. 

P
age 84



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13255 Provision of accessible toilets, The church has an extremely limited £80,000 JGC 
 St Vedast-alias-Fosteraccessible main entrance and fire exit programme of community activities, largely City 
 and new heating/lighting to facilitate delivered by one unrelated tenant charity, 
 peoples' inclusive participation in which is not responsible for the structure of 
 worship and arts at the church. the building. As such, the church as the 
 applicant body has failed to meet your 
 requirement in relation to non-religious 
 activity. 

 13450 Annually-for people with special needs; This proposal does not sufficiently match £22,740 JXM 
 Steel Pan Trust 38wk Steelpan Class, 10 Steelpan your Making London More Inclusive Ealing 
 Workshop Outreach Programs, 5 Visits programme, while it also states that it will 
 to an Art shows and a Celebration & provide some of its activities across the UK. 
 Achievement Event. As such, it falls outside your criteria for your 
 funding. 

 13532 This three-year, user-led, inclusive The charity already receives funding to £118,954 TB 
 The Kennington sports project will enable 100 disabled provide integrated sports programmes (the Lambeth 
 Association children to play a range of sports subject of this request). The application 
 improving their wellbeing and seeks funds for a post to manage the overall 
 encouraging life-long sports service and your funding would not be 
 participation. exclusively or principally spent on furthering 
 the aims and outcomes of your Making 
 London More Inclusive programme. 

P
age 85



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13545 TF will support and empower disabled The Tennis Foundation has annual income £120,520 CR 
 The Tennis people to live more fulfilling and of c. £12-15m, funded chiefly by the Lawn Wandsworth 
 Foundation independent lives through the power of Tennis Association and the annual 
 tennis; increasing opportunities, Wimbledon Championships. It is, in effect, 
 accessibility and volunteer support. the development arm of the governing body 
 and, as such, could be expected to provide 
 this project as part of its core activities, yet 
 proposes to contribute little more than 
 £3,000 p.a. from its own resources. Your 
 policy states that you will not fund access to 
 sport where significant funding is potentially 
 available from a sports governing body. 

 13485 To run a project which champions and This application is to engage disabled actors £90,210 JNM 
 Told by an Idiot showcases disabled theatre artists from for a two-week period to produce a new Camden 
 theatre company London, across three years. production for filming and dissemination. 
 The proposed contact time is brief and it will 
 be challenging to bring about meaningful 
 outcomes in such a short period of time. In 
 its current state, this application appears 
 expensive and appears to miss an 
 opportunity to engage with a new cohort of 
 artists each year for a 12-month period. 

 13488 Promote Digitisation of the Kurdish Organisation with a turnover of £1,200 in £16,620 CR 
 Western Kurdistan Heritage and culture 2015. The request (to re-format archives Hammersmith & 
 Association and records) does not meet your criteria. Fulham 

 Total Making London More Inclusive (12 items) £743,891 

P
age 86



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 Making London Safer 

 13468 To fund counselling to protect and Proposal is for generic youth work with a £102,000 CR 
 St Mary's Centre support psychological, physical, social focus on gangs and does not meet your Camden 
 Community Trust and work health of struggling criteria 
 youth at risk in local areas from gang 
 violence 

 Total Making London Safer (1 item) £102,000 

 Older Londoners 

 13239 To support older carers with significant The case for support has not been well £129,361 JXM 
 Crossroads Care health issues, via additional respite, made and elements of the proposal are not Richmond 
 Richmond and social opportunities, cost-effective. In addition, your officers have 
 Kingston upon information/signposting; IT sessions at a concerns about the financial sustainability of 
 Thames new generic Caring Cafe, & Drop-In the organisation from the information 
 facility. presented. 

 13299 To renovate and re-develop a former A capital request towards the build of a £75,000 JGC 
 John Trotter Trust Victorian school to establish the 'Open planned centre for older people. Because Barnet 
 Door Centre' supporting the needs of this is towards an aspirational programme of 
 older people in Barnet work it is hard to demonstrate the extent to 
 which this will meet the aims of your older 
 people's programme and would involve a 
 higher level of risk than is usual with your 
 grantmaking. Additionally, no details of an 
 access audit have been submitted which is 
 expected for any capital works the Trust 
 funds. 

P
age 87



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13491 For staff and running costs for the Asian Your officer was unable to obtain reliable £97,407 TB 
 SubCo Trust Elders Ageing Well Project, enabling financial information for the organisation, Newham 
 Asian elders aged 75+ to live more especially to determine whether or not your 
 active lives and increase well-being. funds are needed. There is a possibility that 
 a grant would be used to supplement an 
 underpriced contract, 

 13474 Ageing Well addresses social isolation, Following the sale of one of its buildings in £74,459 CR 
 Wimbledon Guild of by providing activities for older people in 2014, the organisation now holds £16m in Merton 
 Social Welfare Merton that seek to improve mental and investments in addition to £1.5m in 
 physical health, and encourage social unrestricted funds. It has, therefore, ample 
 connectedness. capacity to self fund this work. 

 Total Older Londoners (4 items) £376,227 

 Reducing Poverty 

 13267 Reduce poverty,social isolation and An ambitious project to set up a new meals £80,000 JXM 
 Capable Communitiesimprove healthy living through a meals service to benefit older residents. The Harrow 
 Ltd club providing affordable, healthy and a applicant has been unable to provide the 
 range of cultural foods for elderly and financial information and consistency of 
 disadvantaged people project details to convince your officer that 
 this is a feasible proposal, and to provide 
 sufficient assurance that it does not overlap 
 with statutory responsibilities. 

P
age 88



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13476 Developing a holistic solution for A large grant request from a £100,000 TW 
 Fair for You Ltd customers, improving credit profiles for newly-established organisation wishing to Outside London 
 those currently excluded from help clients avoid high-cost credit. Whilst the 
 mainstream finance, delivering them proposed work is well-positioned to support 
 from high-cost credit shops and lenders low-income households who pay a premium 
 for good sand services, it is not sufficiently 
 aligned with the Trust's priorities for the 
 Reducing Poverty programme. 

 13454 To fund a Hub Leader in Ashburton Application is for the full cost of a post £188,309 CR 
 Oasis Community Park, Croydon, to develop appropriate where several of the responsibilities and Westminster 
 Partnerships services and community activities to tasks fall outside your criteria for support 
 meet the needs in that area. and include church development. 

 13534 The grant will pay the employment costs Poorly presented application where the £76,649 CR 
 Welwitschia Legal of WWC's Services Co-ordinator to annual sum requested would represent Haringey 
 Advice Centre manage continued delivery of our debt significantly more than 50% of confirmed 
 and legal advice services. income. 

 Total Reducing Poverty (4 items) £444,958 

 Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders 

 13338 To contribute towards revenue costs of City Bridge Trust funding will constitute £60,000 SFJ 
 Concord Prison Trust supporting London offenders in the more than 50% of income based on the Camden 
 community as they tackle addictions organisation's figures. The applicant cannot 
 and desist from reoffending. evidence that offenders attending their 
 course on Interpersonal Communication 
 Skills would prevent them from reoffending. 

P
age 89



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13508 We require funding for our Prison Most recent audited accounts show £28,492 CR 
 Sue Ryder Volunteer Programme in London, which unrestricted reserves held to be £5m in Camden 
 will provide retail volunteer placements excess of the target to hold £10m. There is 
 to ex-offenders on Community Payback ample scope, therefore, to self fund this 
 and "Through the Gate". proposal. 

 13342 The Wandsworth Community The applicant has a weak evidence base £52,500 JNM 
 Wandsworth Chaplaincy Project - Resettlement & and cannot make a convincing case that Wandsworth 
 Community Rehabilitation demonstrates the impact of its work to 
 Chaplaincy Trust reduce reoffending and support ex-offenders 
 (WCCT) to resettle in the community. The request is 
 for a core post during a period of expansion. 
 the organisation is well supported; it is an 
 effective fundraiser and has healthy 
 reserves, all of which can underpin its 
 planned period of expansion. 

 13551 Reducing reoffending and sports Very little of the proposed project will be £100,000 CR 
 Westminster Drug education programme delivered by the applicant organisation. Camden 
 Project (WDP) Instead, it wishes to use the grant to enable 
 another organisation (a company) to employ 
 a worker to be located with WDP. This is not 
 a model that you support. 

 13518 We will support 120-ex-offenders with The application does not evidence a track £100,511 TB 
 Working Well Trust mental health problems (following record or experience of targeted work with Tower Hamlets 
 Prison Service Order 2300 offenders, and there are concerns about the 
 Resettlement recommendations) to financial sustainability of the charity from the 
 secure employment through our information provided. 
 Individual Placement and Support 
 Model 

 Total Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders (5 items) £341,503 

P
age 90



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 

 

 Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector 

 13345 To strengthen Croydon's voluntary Your officers have had difficulty in obtaining £99,290 JXM 
 Croydon Voluntary sector so that organisations are better clear and understandable details on the Croydon 
 Action able to manage their finances, exploit proposed project, and the organisation's 
 funding opportunities, diversify their own financial position. This situation has not 
 income and become more sustainable. given confidence that the applicant can 
 provide high quality specialist financial 
 management support to other organisations 
 as required under your Strengthening 
 London's Voluntary Sector programme. 

 13465 To build capacity for volunteering in The application fails to demonstrate how £185,320 TB 
 Jewish Volunteering other faith based communities and and in which ways the model on which the Barnet 
 Network (JVN) specifically to establish a Muslim project seeks to build is successful, and 
 volunteering network based on the hence worth replicating. This project is 
 successful model of JVN. presented as a partnership with two Muslim 
 organisations, but these partners' role in 
 delivering the project is not specified, raising 
 concerns as to whether the project would be 
 able to engage the target beneficiaries. 

 13350 Salary for F/T Project Manager An ambitious request to provide £192,333 CR 
 Stephen Lawrence Some overheads volunteering services in Lewisham where an Lewisham 
 Charitable Trust Training established Volunteer Bureau already 
 Volunteer Expenses exists. The charity had a very low level of 
 free reserves in its most recent audited 
 accounts, whilst financial forecasts 
 presented did not improve on this position. 

 Total Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector (3 items) £476,943 

 Grand Totals (37 items) £3,014,735 

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 92



Committee 
 

Dated: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

22nd September 2016 

Subject: 
Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated 
Authority 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Recommendation 

 

 Members are asked to receive this report and note its contents 
 

Main Report 
 

Following the approval of the Court of Common Council on 16th October 2014, the 
Chief Grants Officer may make decisions on applications of up to £10,000. Decisions 
on applications of over £10,000 and up to £25,000 may be approved by the Chief 
Grants Officer in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman.  
 

Decisions on applications of over £25,000 and up to £50,000 may be approved by 
the Chief Grants Officer in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman, 
with reference to the Chamberlain. 
 

7 of the items below are for the costs of an eco-audit, where no monies are paid to 
the recipient organisation, rather the funds approved are used by the Trust to 
commission and appoint qualified professionals to undertake an individual audit for 
the named charity. 
 

The total amount of expenditure and number of items approved under delegated 
authority this financial year (inclusive of those below) are shown in Table 1. 
 
 
Requests < £10k  
 
Association of Chairs 
(approved 15/07/2016) 

£2,000 towards the re-print of the publication "A 
Chair's Compass" 

 
Memory Lane Singing Club 
(approved 30/06/2016) 

 
£5,000 over two year (2 x £2,500) towards the 
cost of performing shows in the community at a 
subsidised rate. 

  
St Ethelburga's Centre for 
Reconciliation and Peace 
(approved 4/08/2016) 

£9,910 to be paid in one instalment and to be 
spent over a 12 month period. In light of the post 
Brexit context, this is to build on existing work, 
enable monthly dialogue events with highly 
diverse groups and provide training events and 
workshops to support community cohesion. 

  

Page 93

Agenda Item 8b



Age Exchange Theatre Trust 
(approved 12/08/2016) 

£2,400 (6 days@£400 per day) to provide an eco-
audit.  
 

Artsadmin 
(approved 12/08/2016) 

£2,400 (6 days @£400 per day) to conduct an 
eco-audit. 
 

Bonny Downs Community 
Association 
(approved 12/08/2016) 
 

£3,000 (7.5 days @£400 per day) to provide an 
eco-audit. 
 

Fulham Good Neighbours 
(approved 12/08/2016) 
 

£2,400 (6 days @£400) to conduct an eco-audit.  
 

Lewisham Disability Coalition 
(approved 12/08/2016) 
 

£2,800 (7 days @ £400) to conduct an eco-audit. 
 

Marble Hill Playcentres 
(approved 12/08/2016) 

£3,000 (7.5 days @£400 per day) to provide an 
eco-audit.  
 

Vine United Reformed Church 
(approved 12/08/2016) 

£2,400 (6 days @£400 per day) to provide an 
eco-audit.  

 
 
Requests £10k - £25k 
 

London Funders 
(approved 4/08/2016) 

£11,030 towards the December 2015 conference, 
together with the production costs of the interim 
report and the final report and the launch of The 
Way Ahead in April 2016. 
 

Naree Shakti (Women's 
Strength) 
(approved 12/07/2016) 

£18,500 over two years (£9,000; £9,500) towards 
the part-time (10 h.p.w) Carers Project Worker 
post, and a contribution to the programme costs 
and on-costs.  

 
 

 

Requests £25k - £50  
  
St Paul's Church Hainault 
(approved 16/07/2016) 

£25,000 towards the access elements of stage 1 
building work comprising replacing the linkway 
between the Church and hall with an access ramp 
and stepped alternative and installing 
automatically opening entrance doors conditional 
on the balance of funding being raised. 

 
Kingston-upon-Thames 
Samaritans 
(approved 12/07/2016) 

 
£40,870 towards access works at the new 
Wheatfield Way site, including the total cost of 
preparing the lift shaft and installing a lift; installing 
a disabled shower and WC; widening door frames 
and installing power-assisted doors and installing 

Page 94



an infrared induction hearing loop and an 
evacuation chair.  

 
Choice in Hackney 
(approved 12/08/2016) 

 
£33,700 for a third year’s support of the volunteer 
project supporting first time users of personal 
budgets. The funding covers two part time officers 
(Support Brokerage & Planning Officer for 10 
hours per week and Brokerage Trainer for 8 hours 
per week) and associated running costs. 

  
Baring Foundation 
(approved 16/07/2016) 

£50,000 towards an independent inquiry into the 
future of civil society 
 

Beacon Fellowship Charitable 
Trust 
(approved 4/08/2016) 

£30,000 towards the 2016/17 Beacon Awards, 
including the category of Beacon Award for City 
Philanthropy, on condition that the required 
balance can be raised and that the funds are not 
used towards the awards ceremony itself.  It is 
also conditional that UKCF works closely with any 
other CBT-funded initiatives on philanthropy, 
together with any related work/meetings being led 
by the City of London Corporation and/or Mansion 
House. 

  
Media Trust 
(approved 12/07/2016) 

£49,107 for the Media Trust to work with a cohort 
of City Bridge Trust grantees on a "Telling Your 
Stories" project. 
 

New Philanthropy Capital 
(approved 12/07/2016) 

£45,000 over three years (£15,000 x 3) towards 
the Inspiring Impact programme’s core costs and 
its engagement activities with smaller charities.  

  

Table 1 – Funds approved under delegated authority in financial year to date. 
   

Applications 
reported to 
Committee 

< £10k  
  

£10k - £25k 
  

£25k - £50k 

  £ No. £ No. £ No. 

May 2016 £26,940 7 £86,545 4 £62,000 2 

July 2016 0 0 £81,050 4 £110,150 3 

September 2016 £35,310 10 £29,530 2 £273,677 7 

Total for year to 
date 

£62,250 17 £197,125 10 £445,827 12 

 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 95

mailto:ciran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



Committee 
 

Dated: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

22nd September 2016 

Subject: 
Unsuccessful Stepping Stones applications   
 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 

This report and the accompanying schedule outlines a total of 47 grant 
applications to the Stepping Stones fund that, for the reason(s) identified, 
were declined by the Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Chief Grants 
Officer under delegated authority further to the Committee’s agreement of 
28th January 2015.  

 
Recommendation 

 

 Members are asked to: 
 

 Note the grant applications detailed in the accompanying schedule 
 
 

Main Report 
 

1. There are a total of 47 applications to the Stepping Stones fund which 
were declined under delegated authority following recommendations by 
your officers. They are listed in the accompanying schedule. In each 
case the “purpose” that is used to describe the application is that 
provided by the applicant organisation. All the recommendations are 
based on criteria set out in your Policy Guidance.  

 
 

 
 
 
Tim Wilson 
Principal Grants and Social Investment Officer 
T: 020 7332 3716 
E: tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8c

mailto:tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 98



 Stepping Stones Rejections 
 Stepping Stones – round 3 

 Summary of Rejected Applications 

 

 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount  Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
  
Stepping Stones 

 13605 We are requesting funding to develop A charity offering sports, leadership and £50,000 TW 
 BIGKID Foundation our capacity and capability to put out mentoring services to 11-25 yr olds in Lambeth 
 social investment bonds, measure our Lambeth and with established links to 
 impact and build our theory of change. statutory agencies. This is a well articulated 
 proposal to move beyond grant reliance, but 
 is judged to be very ambitious. There is 
 insufficient detail how the organisation might 
 be suitable for social investment. 

 13601 £50,000 over 9 months, using The proposed work contains no real link to £50,000 TW 
 Cancer Recovery consultants to develop the business social investment or to the aims of Stepping Camden 
 Foundation UK model and create the programme Stones.  
 infrastructure needed to pilot our cancer  
 survivor telephone support groups.  
 
 13589 To address a recognised sector gap, An application from a previous Stepping £42,979 TW 
 Cardboard Citizens CC is seeking funding to develop two Stones grantee to build on the work funded Tower Hamlets 
 bespoke corporate training programmes through the Capacity Building strand. The 
 - Health & Safety (H&S) and Mental proposed work, to develop corporate training 
 Health. programmes in health & safety and mental 
 health seem very challenging. The application 
 does not present a clear role for social 
 investment in the coming months. 

P
age 99



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 

 13565 Funding our newly formed Business The proposed work does not fit sufficiently £50,000 TW 
 Caritas Anchor House Service Unit  to promote sustainable well with the aims of the Stepping Stones Newham 
 growth, Quality Assurance and Data Fund because it has very little bearing on 
 Monitoring mechanisms as we consider social investment. Funds are requested to 
 the use of Social Finance. develop the charity's Business Service Unit 
 which will work on sustainable growth, quality 
 assurance and data monitoring across the 
 organisation. Although the application 
 mentions a couple of times that the work may 
 ultimately make Caritas Anchor House more 
 investible, this is not explored fully and would 
 be difficult to monitor in the lifetime of a grant. 
 
 13603 Chance UK's Quality and Evaluation The link to social investment as part of their £48,000 TW 
 CHANCE UK Manager (QEM) future plans is insufficiently strong. Islington 
  
 
  

 13599 We aim to develop and pilot a new Although the project management described £49,945 TW 
 Church of England's model (operational, business and is good, the possible link to social investment Islington 
 Children's Society partnership) to create improved social is weak, and there is a lack of detail as to 
 outcomes for young women in gangs in what would actually happen and what the 
 London. next steps would be. Similar material was 
 presented in the previous, unsuccessful, 
 application and there is little evidence the 
 charity has made progress since then. 
 
  
  
  
  

P
age 100



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13594 To fund the purchase of a property for Stepping Stones would be £150,000 TW 
 CTRC Community disabled people. one of several funders and it is not clear how Hillingdon 
 Interest Company the financial package works as a whole or 
 how the impact of the grant could be 
 monitored.  
 
  
  

 13595 CL is seeking human, financial and Overall, a promising proposal but the £50,000 TW 
 Cultivate London strategic capacity building support to work requires the recruitment of several Ealing 
 develop our social enterprises, access new staff members which seems ambitious. 
 social investment and scale our impact  
 and income.  
  

 13576 To pilot a formalised year of 1-1 Funds sought to pilot a 1-1- mentoring £75,000 TW 
 Dallaglio Foundation mentoring to the existing RugbyWorks scheme to supplement their existing Tower Hamlets 
 programme, ensuring YP are better RugbyWorks programme. Although the 
 placed to achieve sustained education, programme and the overall approach of the 
 employment or training. organisation are both well-described, the 
 request to Stepping Stones has no pathway 
 to social investment. 
 
13571 Piloting a Recruitment and Temping The project proposal is insufficiently £49,811 TW 
 Disablement Agency matching job-seekers with 3rd detailed and there is too little Barking & 
 Association of Barking sector jobs and careers and supporting evidence of the applicant's expertise to run a Dagenham 
 & Dagenham (DABD) 3rd sector groups' personnel successful pilot. It is unclear whether plans to 
 recruitment [as a commercial venture]. sustain the service are realistic. 

P
age 101



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
  

 13567 To provide human and financial support Whilst the project is well-described £45,000 TW 
 Engineers Without for the modelling of financially it contains no real link to social Lambeth 
 Borders UK sustainable membership structures that investment or to the aims of the 
 can provide a resilient income stream. Stepping Stones Fund. In addition, the 
 organisation's international focus would make 
 London benefit hard to determine. 
  
  

 13578 A brave and bold new approach to The proposed work contains no specific £70,000 TW 
 Family Action anti-radicalisation in Newham and link to social investment or Islington 
 Tower Hamlets offering early foreseeable pathway to social investment. 
 intervention to families using  
 school-based support and Family Group  
 Conferences.  
  
13579 "Vacation Education -- helping to make It is unclear how the organisation will £42,000 TW 
 Futureversity summers count for every young person" test social investment readiness, and there is Tower Hamlets 
  judged to be insufficient evidence of paying 
 customers to make social investment a 
 realistic future option. 
  

 13602 We wish to test out an alternative GAP wishes to test out revenue £37,500 TW 
 Global Action Plan revenue generating model based on generation via licence fees for environmental Camden 
 empowering employees to reduce the champions but it is unclear that there is any 
 environmental impact of the City of potential progression to social investment 
 London. from the proposed work. 

P
age 102



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area  
  

 13580 The development and piloting of Global A laudable project to develop a commercial £50,000 TW 
 GNB Charitable Noticeboard to homeless clients to operation that will generate revenue for Newham 
 Foundation known as evidence the efficacy of the model and organisations working to address 
 the Humanity Fund enable access to sources of  Social homelessness. The applicant has very low 
 Finance turnover and City Bridge Trust / UBS would 
 effectively become its sole funders which is 
 not permitted by the Trust's eligibility criteria. 
 
13637 Funding is requested to mitigate against  An incomplete application from an £1 TW 
 Grenfell Housing any shortfall or unaffordable element in organisation seeking grant finance to lower Merton 
 Association the amount required to purchase the loan-to-value for a mortgage on 3 
 residential properties for the benefit of properties with 19 bed-spaces valued at £1m. 
 our clients The application does not contain a proper 
 budget or project proposal. 

 13631 Building capacity to enhance social The applicant seeks funding to develop its £49,950 TW 
 Groundwork London investment readiness by establishing quality and performance management Lambeth 
 robust quality and performance systems. Whilst the rationale for the proposed 
 management systems, to improve work is clear the link to social investment is 
 evidencing the overall impact of tangential. 
 revenue generating programmes. 

 13548 To establish a Fitness and wellbeing There is no real evidence of a route £42,936 TW 
 Haringey Sports programme in schools to deal with from the proposed work to social investment. Haringey 
 Development Trust obesity and Health issues that can be  
 delivered across London.  

P
age 103



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
  

 13583 To support High Trees in the It is not clear what role social £49,460 TW 
 High Trees implementation of our business plan investment might play in the organisation's Lambeth 
 Community and development of new products and future and the proposal is not judged to fit 
 Development Trust services to support the sustainability of sufficiently well with the priorities for Stepping 
 the organisation. Stones. 
  
  
 13604 IDEA's vision is to fuel the power of A general capacity building request with no £47,380 TW 
 International Debate persuasion for young people with its specific link to social investment readiness. Camden 
 Education Association weekly World Debate Club programme. 
 UK 

 13596 The funding would enable us to A capital request (which is outside the scope £50,000 TW 
 Kingston Carers renovate our community building to of Stepping Stones Fund) towards Kingston 
 Network develop an income stream and serve refurbishment of the organisation's new 
 the needs of disabled people and centre. 
 carers. 

 13538 To support a blended pilot and capacity The link between the proposed £50,000 TW 
 Law for Life: The building stage to take our online legal work and social investment is not drawn in Hackney 
 Foundation for Public information products and services to any detail. 
 Legal Education market as a 'freemium' model.  
  
   

 13610 To provide support for disabled and  The proposed work contains no link £49,431 TW 
 Livability disadvantaged people to be in a positive  to social investment in the immediate Greenwich 
 place in their lives and run successful  or longer-term. 
 businesses.  
  
  
 
  
 

 

P
age 104



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13529 To establish the London School of The link between the proposed work £48,672 TW 
 London School of Mosaic and its social mission to make and raising social investment is Lambeth 
 Mosaic neighbourhooods more attractive and insufficiently strong. 
 safe.  
  
  

 13618 To test and pilot our new business It is not clear that the applicant is on £35,000 TW 
 Media Trust model of increasing sustainable income a journey towards social investment or Hammersmith & 
 from the media industry. whether revenue generation through fee Fulham 
 income will be sufficient. 
  
  
  

 13629 To create the infrastructure to support The applicant wants to create the £50,000 TW 
 Migrants Resource the growth of our fee paying immigration infrastructure to support the growth of their Westminster 
 Centre advice service. fee paying immigration advice service. MRC 
 has already piloted this work and can grow it 
 (the request to Stepping Stones is for funds 
 towards the costs of a Business Development 
 Manager). Although this is well presented 
 there is no role for social investment in the 
 proposed work. 
 
 13632 To enable Nubian Life to safeguard the The link between the proposed work and £30,000 TW 
 Nubian Life Resource provision of culturally appropriate social investment is not fully articulated. Hammersmith & 
 Centre services through diversifying the range  Fulham 
 of services offered for African  
 Caribbean communities.  

P
age 105



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
  
  

 13588 The running of a conference space The proposed work does not appear to £40,000 TW 
 Passage 2000 social enterprise in our main building require any social investment in its future Westminster 
 development. Passage 2000 wants to 
 develop a social enterprise venue and, after 
 the pilot period, cover costs from hire 
 receipts. 

 13598 To build enterprising capacity across The role of social investment in the £50,000 TW 
 Peter Bedford Housing PBHA's "Enterprising People" project, proposed work is insufficiently clear, Hackney 
 Association enabling people experiencing and it appears possible for the organisation to 
 vulnerabilities to build their self grow the enterprise services by reinvesting 
 confidence and skills so they can reach surplus. 
 independence.  
 
 13590 We are asking for £50,000 to employ The bulk of the request (£30k) is for raw materials £50,000 TW 
 Prosper 4 Business prisoners inside jails to make products (i.e. capital) and therefore falls outside the Lambeth 
 CIC for retail sale - helping them with new scope of the Stepping Stones Fund. In 
 skills and into employment. addition, there is less evidence of market for 
 the product than we would ideally see. 
 

 13558 To increase organisational capacity for A Brentford-based organisation providing £26,800 TW 
 Protege DNA Ltd revenue generation and develop our disadvantaged young people with tailored Richmond 
 business model, brand, market learning opportunities. The applicant currently 
 positioning and USP as specialist runs Protégé Gallery as an exhibition- only 
 gallery training divergent, space, but sees potential to generate revenue 
 disadvantaged young people. from sale of goods. It is unclear whether 
 they'd need investment given the Gallery is 
 already established, and since Protege has a 
 small turnover, debt would represent a 
 significant balance sheet risk. Organic growth 
 might be preferable. 

P
age 106



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13628 To launch a virtual accelerator The proposal submitted is very brief £35,000 TW 
 Rainmaker Foundation programme that builds a foundation of and contains no explicit or implicit link to Tower Hamlets 
 innovation and growth for small charities social investment. 
 and social enterprises.  
   

 13556 To free up the CEO to deliver a social Whilst the proposed development £44,955 TW 
 Raw Material Music investment action plan by putting in plans are clear and sensible there Lambeth 
 and Media Education place a Head of Operations is no real link to social investment 
 Limited or to the aims of the Stepping 
 Stones Fund. 
   
  

 13612 Support to grow the impact of the A charity providing employment and skills £45,000 TW 
 Ripe Enterprises organisation and increase it's fee services to the local community in and around Southwark 
 Limited earning capacity through a sustainable the Old Kent Road. The organisation faces 
 business model. high demand for services and wishes to 
 produce a Business Development and Growth 
 Plan which will help them approach social 
 investors. However, the proposed costs are 
 expected to be much higher than presented to 
 Stepping Stones and it is unclear why the 
 applicant's next step would be social 
 investment when grant finance appears more 
 suitable. 
 
 13611 To devise an income generation model The link between the proposed work £48,136 TW 
 Royal Courts of for Time Together including expansion and social investment readiness is Westminster 
 Justice Citizens to supervised contact and extending insufficiently strong, and the lack of 
 Advice Bureau access to East and West London family involvement from a social finance specialist 
 courts. during the project period also raises 
 questions about the organisation's progress 
 towards investment readiness. 
  
  

P
age 107



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
  

 13591 The contribution of core costs towards  The route towards social investment is not clear £70,000 TW 
 Safe Ground the scaling up, delivery and validation of  and it does not seem that Stepping Stones is Wandsworth 
 arts based community programmes to  the right programme for it. 
 enhance cohesion, engagement,  
 participation and safety.  
  
 13627 To develop a training and consultancy The link between the proposed work and £49,434 TW 
 Safer London trading arm to deliver pan-London social investment is not sufficiently strong and Southwark 
 Foundation services to professionals supporting the application is not judged to be fully 
 young people who have experienced aligned with the aims of the Stepping Stones 
 violence, vulnerability and exploitation. Fund.   
  

 13606 A Step Up for SPID will achieve The proposed work contains no link to social £45,000 TW 
 SPID Theatre strategic organisational change, investment and is therefore not sufficiently Kensington & 
 Company improving our resilience, management well-aligned with Stepping Stones. Chelsea 
 of Kensal House estate's community  
 rooms and engagement through  
 community activities.  
  

 13617 Our request is for a £50k contribution Although social investment is mentioned £49,998 TW 
 The Brightside Trust towards the salary and on-costs for a in the proposal it doesn't seem a strong fit Southwark 
 Social Impact Analyst for an 18 month with the proposed work. In addition, the 
 period. organisation has already had funding for 
 impact analysis from the Social Investment 
 Business' Impact Readiness Fund, so it is 
 unclear what additional benefit Stepping 
 Stones might provide. 

P
age 108



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
 13572 The project is to  formulate a strong The applicant wants to explore the viability of £49,400 TW 
 The London Learning proposal on the viability of a a vocationally focused free school / academy Croydon 
 Foundation vocationally focussed free and, through the grant, produce a report on its 
 school/academy in South London feasibility. It's not clear what role, if any social 
 investment would have after the report is 
 available. 

 13539 Test an innovative and cost-efficient An interesting proposal to use public data to £49,950 TW 
 The Sustainable model in order to identify fuel poverty at identify households at risk of fuel poverty. Southwark 
 Home Survey the household level and assess the However, it is unclear what role, if any, social 
 Company impacts on health and well-being. investment might play in the applicant's future 
 plans. 

 13585 To refine and promote our mentoring The planned role of social investment £47,996 TW 
 Timebank model to Social Investors and Clinical is insufficiently clear. The application Camden 
 Commissioning Groups, to ensure its is similar to a previous, unsuccessful, 
 long-term sustainability through submission and it is unclear the organisation 
 services. has made any progress with the project 
 idea since that previous Stepping 
 Stones round. 
 
 13623 To enable us to continue providing our There is no link to social investment £35,000 TW 
 Toucan Employment necessary services without the need for  in the proposal. Southwark 
 recurrent local authority contract  
 funding.  
  

P
age 109



 Ref & Purpose Reason for Amount Grants Officer 

 Organisation  Recommendation for Rejection Requested & Area 
 
  

 13620 To move away from grant dependency An under-developed proposal with insufficient £50,000 TW 
 UnLtd, the Foundation and to create a robust revenue detail to progress to the next application Islington 
 for Social generating model for UnLtd Ventures round. 
 Entrepreneurs  
   

 13555 To enable One Million Mentors to pilot a  The route from the proposed work to £50,000 TW 
 UpRising revenue model which could self-finance  social investment is unclear. The revenue Tower Hamlets 
 the recruitment and training of a million  projection submitted as part of the proposal 
 mentors in the UK.  shows corporate sponsorship but no loan 
  finance. The proposed work includes activities 
  outside of London which Stepping Stones 
  cannot fund. 
  
 13626 This funding will develop our capacity to  The proposal is insufficiently detailed £50,000 TW 
 Urban Orchard Project take on social investment, particularly  and does not make clear that the Islington 
 Ltd for a future phase of our new juice/cider  work is achievable in the project timeframe. 
 social enterprise.  
   

 13622 To enable us to employ a Specialist  The project period is only described £48,036 TW 
 Westminster Drug Business Development Officer to  at a high level and, given the organisation's Camden 
 Project (WDP) assess the feasibility of utilising social  reserves, self-funding is realistic. 
 investment to finance our "Recovery In  
 Action" programmes.  
  
   

 Total Stepping Stones (47 items) £1,886,566 

 Grand Totals (47 items) £1,886,566 

P
age 110



Committee 
 

Dated: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

22nd September 2016 

Subject: 
Withdrawn & Lapsed applications 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report informs Members of applications received which subsequently have been 
withdrawn by the applicant, or lapsed due to the absence of the information required 
to undertake a full assessment. 
 

Recommendation 
 
 Members are asked to receive this report and note its contents 
 

Main Report 
 
Organisation        Purpose of Request 
 
Withdrawn Applications: 
 
Bell Farm Christian Centre To undertake alterations to the Centre including 

the toilets to make the Centre more accessible 
following the recommendations of the access 
audit completed in 2015.  
 

- Application withdrawn when the organisation 
realised it was ineligible at present as it is already 
in receipt of a grant.  
 

Veterans Aid We would like to submit an application for a grant 
towards funding the disabled facilities in our 
hostel, New Belvedere House.  
 

- Organisation wishes to submit a revised 
proposal 

  
Carers Support Merton Support for family carers of people with dementia 

that improves quality of life for both the carer and 
the person with dementia.  
 

- Following discussion with your officer, 
organisation withdrew in order to submit a revised 
funding proposal. 
 

SSAFA-FH (London City East 
Division) 

To allow SSAFA to provide Older Londoners who 
have served in the armed forces with a better 
quality of life and to alleviate hardship.  
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 8d



- Proposal withdrawn so that a revised application 
can be made. 

  
Poached Creative CIC Strengthen London's voluntary sector, by 

providing pro-bono support to help charities and 
social enterprises improve their communications 
and make the sector more representative and 
diverse. 
 

 - Following discussion with your officer regarding 
the organisation's financial position, the applicant 
wishes to withdraw its proposal and re-submit 
once two business loans have been repaid.  

 
Tamil Community Housing 
Association Ltd (Tamil 
Housing) – Stepping Stones 

Set up a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) to enable 
Tamil Housing to pilot a Community Investor 
crowd funding model for future new build 
affordable housing.  
 

- Following discussion with your officer the 
organisation has asked to withdraw its proposal 
and submit an application in a future round of 
Stepping Stones. 

 
Lapsed Applications  
 
Youth at Risk To transform the attitudes and behaviour of young 

people in Hackney experiencing marginalisation 
and disengagement, re-engaging them with their 
community and reducing offending behaviour.  
 

- Lapsed as the organisation failed to respond to 
requests for information.  
 

Disability Times Trust 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fruit Fly Collective 
 

To provide a salary for a Community Resettlement 
Coordinator, working with ex-offenders, especially 
those with multiple needs, to support their 
transition back into the community.  
 

- Information necessary to undertake a full 
assessment did not materialise. 
 
To support and increase resilience in children who 
have a parent diagnosed with cancer, by providing 
creative interventions, and training key healthcare 
and school-based professionals. 
 

- Lapsed as information requested did not 
materialise. 
 

Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
 

T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 112

mailto:ciran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Committee 
 

Dated: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

22nd September 2016 

Subject: 
Variations to grants awarded 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report informs Members of 4 grants where variations have been agreed by the 
Chief Grants officer since your last meeting. 
 

Recommendation 
 
 Members are asked to: 
 

 Receive this report and note its contents 
 
 

Main Report 
 
Since your last meeting, variations to the grants outlined below have been agreed by 
the Chief Grants Officer, in line with the revised delegated procedure for the 
amendment of grants as agreed by your Committee in October 2004. 
 
 
 

Merton Home Tutoring Service 
In April 2013 a grant of £34,120 was awarded towards ESOL classes for refugees 
and migrants. Some of the costs supported included room hire for a crèche. After the 
first year the organisation was not charged for this room so the sum required for year 
2 - £2,736 – has been written back. 
 
St Vedast-alias-Foster 
£1,000 to commission an access audited was granted in July 2015. The actual cost 
turned out to be less than that so the balance, £105, has been revoked. 
 
London Borough of Lambeth 
LB Lambeth was awarded £100,000 in April 2013 under your “Youth Offer” initiative, 
on the stipulation that it had to work in conjunction with voluntary sector partners to 
deliver the programme. Unfortunately one of the selected partners pulled out of the 
scheme resulting in an underspend of £15,500 and which has now been revoked. 
 
Hillingdon South Society for Mentally Handicapped 
This organisation was awarded a capital grant of £100,000 in May 2015 towards the 
second stage refurbishment costs of its hydrotherapy/swimming pool. The charity 
trustees have recently confirmed that they are unable to pursue the fundraising 
needed to raise the balance required, hence the grant has been revoked. 

Page 113

Agenda Item 8e



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



Committee 
 

Dated:  
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

22nd September 2016 

Subject: 
Report on monitoring visits 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report introduces reports from monitoring visits to SHARE Community 
and the HARRP Trust. 

 
Recommendation 

 
 Members are asked to: 
 

 Receive this report and note its contents 
 
 

Main Report 
 

1. You receive monitoring visit reports at each of your meetings. These 
are in addition to more substantial bi-annual monitoring reports 
examining patterns of funding and benefit of grants awarded.  

 
2. The reports to this Committee are from visits to SHARE Community 

and the HARRP Trust. The first award supports an organisation 
working with people with learning disabilities, assisting them to lead 
more independent lives. The second award was for employability 
training for ex-offenders.  

 
 
 
Tim Wilson 
Principal Grants and Social Investment Officer 
 

T: 020 7332 3716 
E: tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 115

Agenda Item 8f

mailto:tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



LEARNING VISIT REPORT 

SHARE Community 12056 

1.1 Date of visit: 

 

29/03/2016 

1.2 Name of visiting 

Grants Officer:  

Jack Joslin 

Becky Green 

1.3 People met with: 

Annie McDowall (CE) 

Robert Boyce (DepCE) 

Leanne Wood (HR) 

Joseph Vitton (Dev Off) 

1.4 Programme Area and outcome: 

Making London More Inclusive\Disabled people actively taking part in the arts or 

sport 

1.5 Purpose of the award: 

£130,000 over three years (£43,000; £43,000; £44,000) towards the salaries of a p/t 

(17.5 hpw) Development Worker and 17.5 hpw of the HR Administrator, plus running 

costs of the "Go anywhere, do anything" Project. 

MONITORING INFORMATION 

2.1 Project Outcome 1: 

People with learning difficulties are more confident in accessing mainstream arts, 

sports and leisure events.  They're able to manage social situations, navigate the 

transport system, and take part on an equal basis. 
 

Progress made: 

We met with project staff, management and 3 of the project beneficiaries in the 

organisation’s new immersive learning space.  The project has been very successful 

so far in recruiting and matching volunteers (social buddies) and beneficiaries for the 

‘Go anywhere, do anything’ project.  This year the project has worked with at least 

48 people with learning disabilities, helping them to access a range of activities 

across London. Activities have included: music concerts; bowling; cinema trips; 

attending a festival; watching England at Wembley; and going to ‘Kisstory’ club night 

at the O2.  The volunteers are matched to each beneficiary to enable them to access 

opportunities, navigate the transport system and engage in activities that they may 

not have been able to access in the past. 

2.2 Project Outcome 2: 

People with learning difficulties lead normal lives, enjoying what London has to offer 

at the same times and venues as everyone else, and with the lack of constraints 

such as getting home early. 
 

Progress made: 

From our discussion with staff it is clear that this project is enabling the beneficiaries 

to have a range of experiences and enjoy the full potential of what London has to 

offer.  The beneficiaries are engaged throughout the planning of the project and they 

decide on what activities they would like to do at a monthly steering group.  Two of 

the beneficiaries we met enjoyed their recent trip to a nightclub at the O2 where they 

got home at 3am. This project is finding ways to facilitate different experiences for its 

beneficiaries that they would not have been able to access in the past. 

Page 117



2.3 Project Outcome 3: 

People with learning difficulties report feeling fitter and happier as a result of their 

activities on the project.  Where appropriate, people's health can be demonstrated to 

have improved – e.g. those seeking to lose weight through exercise; people 

experiencing depression. 
 

Progress made: 

Following the meeting, we observed a steering group.  The project workers used the 

immersive learning space as a tool to aid decision making.  The space has been 

recently installed and is a special interactive room with wrap around video and 

sound.  The use of this immersive learning space adds an extra dimension to the 

steering group meetings and how decisions are made. From observing the steering 

group in action and talking to the project members it was clear that this work is 

making a demonstrable difference to its beneficiaries.  The project is improving the 

independence and choice of its members and increasing their engagement in 

activities. 

2.4 Project Outcome 4: 

People with learning difficulties are able to follow and develop their interests through 

buddy relationships with others who share their interest.  As a result, they feel valued 

and benefit from companionship. 
 

Progress made: 

The project has 28 Social Buddies on its list of volunteers.  Many of these volunteers 

have come through word of mouth as the project has developed.  The Buddies are 

put through a rigorous training before they can sign up to support on an outing.  They 

usually run one buddy to one beneficiary to ensure that a positive relationship is 

formed and the beneficiaries can share their interests.  From talking to some of the 

members it was clear that these relationships and experiences were making a 

significant difference as well as helping to develop independence.   

2.5 Project Outcome 5: 

Evaluation of the project to promote best practice.  The report will be disseminated 

and shared through the British Institute for Learning Disability and local forums. 
 

Progress made: 

The 2 project workers collect monitoring information throughout the year.  This will 

be used in the external evaluation that will take place in the final year of the project. 

 

GRANT OFFICER COMMENTS 

Share Community works with disabled people who need extra help and support in 

order to achieve their potential.  Share provides training and employment support for 

disabled adults, including those with learning disabilities, physical/ sensory 

impairments, autism and mental health needs. The project you have funded is 

making a real difference to its beneficiaries and through our conversations with staff, 

managers and project members it was clear how much added value this work was 

Page 118



offering.  The project has been so sought after that they now have waiting lists and 

have already exceeded the number of beneficiaries they had originally forecast in 

their application.  The project beneficiaries have complete freedom of choice and are 

involved in decision making at every stage.  The staff act as facilitators and have a 

pro-active attitude to arranging outings.  This project has opened London up to its 

beneficiaries and allowed them to attend a range of cultural, sporting and 

recreational activities that they may never have been able to access in the past.  The 

use of social buddies has been enabling for the project and allowed the work to 

expand and thrive. From discussion with the project staff it was clear that the 

buddies gained as much from the project as the beneficiaries, which has in turn 

helped the organisation’s profile in the local community. 

 

The recent installation of the immersive learning space will add an extra dimension 

to this project, allowing staff and project members to make decisions at steering 

groups in an interactive and inclusive space. 

 

It was clear from our visit that the project is delivering over and above its outcomes 

and it will be interesting to see what observations the external evaluation makes in 

the final year of your grant.  During the meeting we discussed the sustainability of 

the programme and the organisation is looking at a variety of different options, 

including approaching corporates, the use of personal budgets and other avenues 

for funding.  A Trust and Fundraising Officer is currently being recruited to assist with 

this. 
 

 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



 

 

LEARNING VISIT REPORT 

The HARRP Trust 12113 

1.1 Date of visit: 

 

31/03/2016  

1.2 Name of visiting 

Grants Officer: 

Joan Millbank   

1.3 People met with: 

 

Michael Buraimoh, 

Project Director 

David Dickson, Project 

Manager 

1.4 Programme Area & Outcomes: 

Resettlement and Rehabilitation of Offenders - More ex-offenders successfully and 

sustainably resettled in the community and re-offending rates reduced 

1.5 Purpose of the award: 

£109,000 over three years (£31,000; £35,500; £42,500) towards the salary of a full-

time Employability Officer and running costs of the ‘Work Works’ project, conditional 

on receipt of a reserves policy. 

MONITORING INFORMATION 

2.1 Project Outcome 1: 

65% of beneficiaries who engage on the project would not re-offend (retention rate).    

Progress made: Substantial progress has been made. In year one the project 

engaged with 42 ex-offenders of whom 35 completed the twelve month contact 

period. Of these only 2 persons were known to have re-offended, which gives a re-

offending rate of approximately 6%. This is very low compared to official re-offending 

rates i.e. two-thirds of ex-offenders re-offending within a year of release ('Proven Re-

offending Statistics' Quarterly Bulletin published by the Ministry of Justice 2013).  

In the first 6 months of year two project figures indicate a re-offending rate of 4%. 

 

2.2 Project Outcome 2: 

All beneficiaries will develop or show improved confidence/motivation/employability 

to progress into employment, training or further education.  

Progress made: Project monitoring indicates that the confidence and motivation of 

all participants to date increases as they progress through the project stages. 

HARRP believe this is because of the holistic nature of the support provided which is 

tailored to meet each individual’s needs and wishes, and now delivered (mainly) on a 

one-to-one basis.  Two specific case-studies and case files were presented which 

illustrated these assertions.  

  

2.3 Project Outcome 3: 

50% of beneficiaries per year will have generally improved their life chances by 

achieving one or more of additional key needs identified across the 7 nationally 

recognised pathways to resettlement, including drug/alcohol problems, mental health 

issues, accommodation issues, rebuilding family/ key support networks, lack of 

training/qualification etc. 

Progress made: Examples were shown of the individual action plans which are 

Page 121



 

 

prepared with each participant. Each plan sets out each participant’s needs, issues 

and goals; progress is checked against SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, 

realistic, and timely) objectives. Each plan also set out and charts progress made on 

help with housing, drug/alcohol problems, and other issues which are likely to be 

barriers to successful resettlement. The case-studies discussed at the meeting 

demonstrated the scope of work undertake and  the value of working collaboratively 

with other agencies e.g. housing providers, social workers, health workers, to 

address individual need.   

 

2.4 Project Outcome 4: 

Service-users will progress into employment: We will aim to progress a minimum of 

20% of service users into employment. Of these 50% will remain in employment for 

at least 13 weeks. 

Progress made: At the assessment meeting the project explained that it had kept 

the ‘into employment’ projections low to reflect their preference to a long-term-

focused intervention rather than quick fixes that are often unsustainable.  The 

cautious approach seems to be working. In year one 3 participants were still in work 

after 13 weeks with another 4 still within the 13 week period i.e. 20% participants into 

work. In the first half of year two 2 participants have moved into full time employment 

and 1 into a fulltime apprenticeship (11% into work to date).  

 

2.5 Project Outcome 5: 

We will organise a minimum of one job fair a year and invite employers from our 

network of socially responsible employers. 

Progress made: A job fair was organised in 2015 and another is being organised for 

June 2016. Contact with employers continues to be an important feature of HARRP’s 

work. Engaged employers include Premier Inn, Fifteen Restaurant, and local 

authorities.  

 

GRANT OFFICER COMMENTS 

The project approach has been developed on the understanding that ex-offenders 

have multiple and complex needs which are not adequately addressed through the 

established Work Programme. HARRP provides targeted, focused support and their 

initial findings highlighted earlier in this report indicates that their approach appears 

to be working i.e. participants in their Work Works approach have a low recidivism 

rate. 
 

The charity has not been able to provide some elements of the proposed project. 

Change in prison policy has made it impossible to continue with the ‘pre-release 

assessment’. No progress has been made on developing a peer support element 

due to project capacity pressures. In the last year the charity has lost its dedicated 

office and training room, and is unable to afford similar alternative premises. The 

charity has also reduced its staff team following the end of funding. In response 

Page 122



 

 

HARRP has changed its approach to Work Works, moving away from a mix of 

individual support and group work to almost entirely one-to-one provision. While they 

believe the quality of support and impact on the individual ex-offender has improved 

the delivery approach is more time-intensive and is therefore having a negative 

impact on the numbers of participants supported.  It estimates helping between 40-

50 ex-offenders in funding year 2 and 3, rather than 60 in year 2 and 80 in year 3 as 

originally agreed.  It should be noted that the numbers were reduced at the initial 

assessment meeting to make them more realistic and it is considered reasonable to 

reduce them further. I have agreed to reducing the annual outputs to 45 while 

maintain the percentage benefit levels. This is a more realistic figure based on actual 

performance and will still mean that the charity is delivering good value for money.  
 

Government changes in the delivery of the Work Programme (cessation of 

commissioned projects and return to direct delivery by the Job Centres) and the 

transforming reoffending agenda has caused uncertainty within the sector, although 

many third sector service providers – including HARRP - welcome the change as it 

believes that provision will be more integrated and more relevant to the complex and 

specific needs of ex-offenders. HARRP has built strong relationships with its local 

Job Centres and believe that it is seen – and positioned - as a credible partner. . 

More referrals are being made from the Job Centres and HARRP runs its ex-

offenders disclosure training in the Centres.  

 

HARRP’s positive approach and response to changing operating environment is 

encouraging. It is learning from experience and adapting to changing circumstances 

while maintaining its mission to improve life chances for ex-offenders and 

contributing to reducing crime within the wider community. 

 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



Committee 
 

Dated: 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 
 

22nd September 2016 

Subject: 
Events attended 
 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Chief Grants Officer 
 

For Information 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report incorporates a schedule of the key meetings and events 
attended by Members and officers since your last meeting. 

 
Recommendation 

 
 Members are asked to: 
 

 Receive this report and note its contents 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
 

T: 020 7332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk] 
 

Page 125

Agenda Item 8g

mailto:ciran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



CITY BRIDGE TRUST  
 

Professional Development Events, Conferences and Seminars  
Attended 30th June to 5th September 2016         

 

Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary 
 

30/06/16 City Bridge Trust Growing 
Localities 
Awards 

Chairman; 
Deputy Chairman; 
Several Members; 
Chief Grants Officer; 
CBT Team Members 
 

Horniman 
Museum 

A well-attended awards event to celebrate 
all entries on the Growing Localities 
programme in partnership with Lemos and 
Crane, for the fourth year.  Master Micheal 
Orr of the Worshipful Company of Glovers 
gave each winner some hardy  gardening 
gloves as gifts 

05/07/16 Lord Mayor’s 
Appeal Charity 

Breakfast 
Seminar 

Jack Joslin, Grants 
Officer 

Royal Festival 
Hall 

One of a series of seminars under the 
Power of Diversity banner. This one focused 
on building a gender diverse business, with 
examples of innovative approaches. 

13/07/16 London Councils Grants 
Committee and 
AGM 

Chairman; 
Chief Grants Officer 

London 
Councils 
Offices 

The Chairman and the Chief Grants Officer 
attended the London Councils Grants 
Committee meeting and the AGM. 

13/07/16 Ethical Property 
Company 

Seminar Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

Vauxhall Several grant-makers and social investors 
met to discuss the possibility of a building 
offering shared workspace to organisations 
concerned with the social investment market 

14/07/16 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Board meeting Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

Kings Cross Your officer is a trustee of this umbrella 
organisation for grant-making trusts 

15/07/16 Voluntary Action 
Harrow Co-op 

Funding 
presentation 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Harrow A well-attended event with c.30 local 
organisations present, to hear about your 
funding priorities. 

P
age 127



21/07/16 City Bridge Trust Seminar Edward Lord OBE; 
Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer; other CBT 
staff 

Basinghall 
Suite, Guildhall 

See Progress Report elsewhere in these 
papers 

25/07/16 Heart of the City Board Meeting Chairman Guildhall The Chairman, as the CBT representative 
on Heart of the City, attended a Board 
meeting. 

26/07/16 Voluntary Action 
Lewisham 

Funding 
Presentation 

Shegufta Rahman, 
Grants Officer 

Lewisham A well-attended event with c.20 local 
organisations present, to hear about your 
funding priorities. 

27/07/16 Living Wage 
Foundation 

Meeting Jack Joslin, Grants 
Officer 

Whitechapel Quarterly meeting of the Living Wage 
Friendly Funder group. 

01/08/16 Church of 
England’s 
Children’s Society 

Assessment 
Visit 

Chairman; 
Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Charity offices, 
Mount 
Pleasant 

The Chairman accompanied your officer in 
undertaking an assessment visit to this 
recent grant applicant. A report 
recommending funding is elsewhere in your 
papers. 

01/08/16 London Councils Familiarisation 
visit 

Chairman London 
Councils’ 
offices 

The Chairman met with London Councils’ 
officers, Nick Lester-Davis and Simon 
Courage, to learn about their work. 

03/08/16 Graeae Theatre 
Company 

2012 
Paralympics: 
legacy, Rio & 
the future 

Julia Mirkin and Jack 
Joslin, Grants Officers  

National 
Theatre 

A panel discussion with Rufus Norris, Mat 
Fraser, Jenny Sealey, Nicola Miles-Wildin 
and John Kelly, followed by a drinks 
reception. 

08/08/16 London Funders Familiarisation 
visit 

Chairman London 
Funders’ 
offices 

The Chairman met with David Warner, CEO 
of London Funders, to learn about their 
work. 

11/08/16 Old Vic Theatre Community 
production 

Chairman Old Vic 
Theatre 

The Chairman watched a performance of 
Rise; a community production which you are 
supporting, at the Old Vic Theatre. 

P
age 128



17/08/16 GLA Familiarisation 
visit 

Chairman GLA offices The Chairman met with Amanda Coyle and 
Sarah Mulley of the GLA, to learn about 
their work. 

02/08/16 Social Finance Seminar Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

Great Portland 
Street 

The steering committee meeting of Social 
Finance’s Impact Incubator programme, to 
which the Trust has contributed. 

08/08/16 Race on the 
Agenda 

Seminar Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Joseph 
Rowntree 
Foundation, 
Albert 
Embankment 

An event to consider current work targeted 
at reducing unemployment rates amongst 
young Black men. 

02/09/16 Investing 4 Good Impact Investing 
& Finance 
Training 

Shegufta Rahman, 
Grants Officer 

Aldgate East Social Sector Knowledge Training arranged 
via On Purpose. 

P
age 129



General Events and Receptions  
Attended 30th June to 5th September 2016   

        

Date Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary  
 

30/06/16 The Prince’s 
Trust 

London Launch  Chairman; Karina 
Dostalova; Catherine 
McGuinness 

Basinghall 
Suite, Guildhall 

London Launch of Achieve Programme 

30/06/16 Muscular 
Dystrophy UK 

Reception Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

St James’s 
Palace 

An event to mark HRH The Duke of 
Edinburgh’s 50 years as Patron of the 
charity 

01/07/16 London 
Symphony 
Orchestra 

Concert Jack Joslin, Grants 
Officer 

St Luke’s, 
Holborn 

Attended a concert showcasing the LSO 
Create project. 

08/07/16 The Prince’s 
Trust 

Celebration 
Event 

Shegufta Rahman, 
Grants Officer; Jack 
Joslin; Grants Officer 

Prince’s Trust 
House 

Celebration event for the Get Started with 
the Media Trust project. 

13/07/16 Helen Bamber 
Foundation 

Reception Shegufta Rahman, 
Grants Officer 

Helen Bamber 
Foundation 
Office 

Summer Open Evening 

20/07/16 Discover Opening Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants and Social 
Investment Officer 

Stratford The re-opening of Discover, a learning and 
play centre in East London to which City 
Bridge Trust contributed funds for access 
improvements. The Children’s Laureate, 
Chris Riddell, gave a welcome address. 

25/07/16 Positive East Reception Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

House of Lords An event to mark the 25th anniversary of 
Positive East. 

29/07/16 The Prince’s 
Trust 

Celebration 
Event 

Chairman; Stewart 
Goshawk, Chief 
Executive Officer 
WSNT 
 

Queen’s Park 
Rangers 
Football Club 

Celebration Event at the end of Get Started 
with Football programme delivered in 
partnership with QPR in the Community 
Trust. 

02/08/16 Wilton’s Music 
Hall 

Performance Chairman Wilton’s Music 
Hall 

The Chairman watched a production of 
Britten in Brooklyn, at Wilton’s Music Hall.  

P
age 130



01/09/16 Floating Cinema Screening Shegufta Rahman, 
Grants Officer 

Kings Cross Screening of Another Country. The Floating 
Cinema is part of an arts charity which you 
are supporting. 

 
City Philanthropy Events 

Attended 30th June to 5th September  
  

Date Organisation Type of Event City Philanthropy 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary 

27.6.16 
 

City Philanthropy Breakfast Helen Atwood Canary Wharf Impact for Breakfast: Modern Day Slavery. 
A panel and roundtable discussion on the 
role of business in this space and 
networking breakfast. 

28.6.16 
 

City Philanthropy Evening focus 
group event 

Cheryl Chapman, 
Rosie Mitchell-
Hudson, Helen 
Atwood 

City of London City Philanthropy’s 1% Bonus Pledge think 
tank. An evening to hear from City bonus 
receivers about the possibility of launching a 
1% City bonus pledge and exploring the 
appetite for it. 

30.6.16 Centre for Social 
Justice 

Networking Helen Atwood – City 
Philanthropy 

City of London Business community CSR networking event 
with then business Sec of State – Sajid 
Javid MP  

12.7.16 MHA MacIntyre 
Hudson 

Seminar Helen Atwood – City 
Philanthropy 

City of London Charity mismanagement – leading lessons 
from Kids Company 

19.7.16 Atos Networking Helen Atwood – City 
Philanthropy 

Westminster Summer drinks reception 

 

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 132



Document is Restricted

Page 133

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding Actions
	5 Progress Report
	6 Risk Register for Bridge House Estates
	Risk Register for Bridge House Estates (App 1)
	Risk Register for Bridge House Estates (App 2)

	7 Grants and Strategic Initiatives Recommendations and Assessments
	7a Afghan Association Paiwand
	7b Baytree Centre
	7c School Food Matters
	7d Church of England's Children's Society
	7e East London Out Project
	7f Groundswell Network Support UK
	7g Highbury Roundhouse Youth and Community Centre
	7h Kith & Kids
	7i Noah's Ark Children's Hospice
	7j Play, Adventure and Community Enrichment (PACE)
	7k South London Fine Art Gallery and Library
	7l St Peter's Bethnal Green
	7m Age UK Richmond Upon Thames
	7n Chinese National Healthy Living Centre
	7o Cardinal Hume Centre
	7p Crosslight Advice
	7q Haringey Migrant Support Centre
	7r Chaos Theory
	7s St Giles Trust
	7t Community Links Bromley
	8a Applications recommended for rejection
	C+ - Recommended for Rejection

	8b Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated Authority
	8c Unsuccessful Stepping Stones applications
	E+ - Stepping Stones - Applications declined

	8d Withdrawn & Lapsed applications
	8e Variations to grants awarded
	8f Report on monitoring visits
	H+ - Monitoring visit - SHARE Community
	H++ - Monitoring visit - HARRP

	8g Events attended
	I+ - Events Table

	12 Non-Public Minutes
	13 Pipeline of pro-active strategic grants



